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THE PRINCE AND PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
REFPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Impact of the global pan o

The Prince & Princess of Wales Hospice was appropriately prepared for the COVID-19 pandemic when it bagan early
in 2020. As restrictions were introduced in Scotland, the hospice activated ts pandemic emargency plan. As health
and safaty measures were implemented throughout the hospice, patients continued to be admitted into the inpatient
unit where staff provided exceptional clinical and compassionate care fo those who needed it

Senior managers put in place a range of procasses to ensure that the hospice carried on caring for people at the end
of their lives, while ensuring that health and safety was maintained for all patlents, visitors, volunteers and staff. As
atways, the hospice ensured that every decizion was taken in participation with our pafients, their families and our
staff's wellbeing and health as the most important factor

From Apnil we put in place stringent infection control measures and our clinical and medical teams adapted to new
ways of working, with PPE equipment being worn to hall the transmission of covid-15.

To ensure that the hospice complied with Government guidance and to keep our vulnerable patients safe, outpatiants’
senvices provided from within the hospice had to cease. However, this led the team o initiate innovative naw ways of
providing their care 1o patients virtually. With resfrictions still in place, hosplce staff are planning for tha return of these
autpatiants to a more socially distanced and covid-safe enviranment within the hospice,

Our community services have continued to oparate but at a reduced level with staff taking cognisance of visiting
patients who were shielding In their homes. Telephane contact has been maintained with all patients in the community
and digital ways of communicating such as Near Me and Attend Anywhere have been used for virtual face-to-face
consultations. As restrictions are fifted, community services will increase.

During the coronavirus pandemic, hosplce staff have shown themseives as resourceful and dedicated to ensuring the
best possible care for their patients. While our in-house education suite closed in March fo comply with restrictions
and all external reoms bookings cancelled, we made full use of the digital technologies avallable to us. Our clinical
and our medical teams have used our education suite to deliver raining Internally and externally.

Income sireams have slowed as again to comply with restrictions, we had 1o close all our retzil shops and cancel all
fundraising events. We have, however, continued to receive generous donations from our supporters during this tme.
We also accessed the Governmant's Job Retention Grant with maore than 70 staff being placed on furlough. This
protected their health and safety by allowing them to stay at home during the height of the pandemic while also
allowing the hospice to reduce associated running cosls. The hosplce also received emergency government funding
to bridge the loss of fundraising income.

As we face an unceriain future, the hospice will be better placed to cope with any future challenges- &t will be stronger,
more &gile and belter equipped to face change and adversity in the coming years.

During financial year 2013-20 the Hospice continued to provide exceptional care and operated to normal capacity up
until government restrictions were introduced as a nesult of the global pandemic, The following report @nd notes stand

true for this financial year.



THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSFICE
DIRECTORS" ANNUAL REPORT AND STRATEGIC REFORT

The Direciors submil their Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statemeant of Recommended Prachce: Accounting
and Reporting by Charities preparing their Financial Statements in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republc of Ireland [FRS 102), the Charties and Trustee Invesiment {Scotland) Act 2005 and
the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).

The legal and administrative information coniained above forms part of this report

1. Purpose and Principal Activities

The Prince & Princess of Wales Hospice (the Hospice) is located within Ballahousten Park in the southermn suburbs of
Glasgow. The principal activity of the Hospice is the care of patients with fife limiting progressive disease and their
families, The Hospice offers four distinct areas of care to patients — Inpatient, Day Services, Clinical Nurse Specialist
Community team and input to Acute Hospital teams. Patients may access any or all of them, according to individual
needs, From & community heaith perspective, the Hospica covers two Community Health Care & Social Care
Partnarships with responsibility for a popuiation of approximately 265,000 people, end recaives referrals from over 100
local GF practices, as well &3 from the Acute Hospitals servicing particularly the South Glasgow area.

The Hospice team acts 85 & resource to health care professionals who provide pallative care in all of these settings. A
team of over 100 {FTE) staff and 700 volunteers combine o provide patient and family care and to generate and manage
the funding required. The Hospice cumently receives ower 1,200 new refarrals a year. Care is free and culturally
sensitive.

The Hospice oparates to provide Specialist Palliative Care services in co-operation with NHS Greater Glasgow & Clyde
under & senvice level agreemant and smangements managed through new Health and Social Care Partnerships in
Glasgow City and East Ranfrewshire. These arrangements are organised in keeping with the policy context outlined in
a Memorandum of Understanding between the Independent Scottish Hospicas and the Joint Integrated Board which
overseas the activilies of tha Health and Soclal Care Partnerships across Scotland

2. Structure, Management and Governance

Governing Document

The Prince & Princess of Wales Hospice is a charitable company limited by quarantee, incorporated on 20 July 1283
and is a Registerad Scottish Charity. It is established under its Memorandum of Association which |ays out the objacts

and powers of the company and is governed by its Aricles of Association which set aut the legal and organisational
procaedures o which ifts sdministration miuest adhare.

Organisational Structure and Management

The Hospice has & ciear reporting structure wheare senior staff members with defined responsibilities report to the Chief
Executive wha in turn reports to the Board of Directors. Day to day operational responsibifity is delegated to the Chief
Executive and the Hospice management team, All members of the management team are present at regular
management meetings and at all six board meetings during the year, participating in subgroups as appropriate.

In addition i the provision of patient care, the Hospice raisas funds fowards the funding of the care, and, together with
its subsidiary company Hospice Enterprizes Limited, operates a number of charity shops in the Glasgow area, In 2018,
the Hespice joined with Glasgow Clyde College to form a small charity to provide refevant wark experience for students
of the College, any financial surplus from which will be donated I the HOSMCE.

In November 2011, the Hospice formed a new subsidiary company, Hospice Developments Lid, to organise and overses
the devaiopment of its new build hospice facility in South Glasgow which opened in 2018, The company remains in

place while the final project requiremenis are compleied.
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{eontinued)

Directors and Trustees

The Directors of the chantable company (the charity) are iis Trustees for the purpose of charity law and throughout this
report are referad (o as the Directors or collectively as the Board (of Directors).

Recruitment and Appointment of Directors

Linder the requirements of the Memcrandum and Ardficles of Association, members of the Board are elected ko senve for
a period of three vears after which they must be re-elected at the next AGM, Unless otherwise resolved by the Hospice
Members in General meeting, a maximum of bvo terms [six years) may be served. To ensure stabifity and consistency
during the Mew Hospice Development, the members resolved to extend the terms of five Direciors who are presently
sanving on the Board and that of the Chairman who resigned in May 2019, The Board has adopled a meeting and
information structure under which it meats formally at least six times per year. Between formal meetings, Direciors ara
kapt in tauch electronically with issuves of mporiance, and & ful financial repor is issued manthly,

The Board is comprised of individuals with @ wide range of skills broadly based in business, financial and clinical areas
To maintain this balance, retired Directors are replaced by those with an appropriate skili set.  This ensures that the
Baard sub-committzes of Awdil, Clinical Governance and Income Generation Govermnanca have relevant represantation
In addition, independent directors with appropriate skill sets are recruited to serve on the Boards of the subsidiary
companies, Potential Direclors are identified by existing Board members and invited to the Hospice o mest with the
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive, to establish whether the appaintment is appropriate. They then raquire to
become members of the Hospice before being appointed, subject to full Board approval, 8z a Direcior of the Hospice
Hospice mambearship is nof required of but is open o independent subsidiary diractors.

Director Induction and Training

Mew appointees to the Board and subsidiaries will meet with the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive at the
Hospice for & tour of the faclities and additional familiarsation with the services being provided. In addition they are
invited fo parti:'tl:late in the reguler induchions available to all new staff and volunteers within the Hospéca.

To ensure regular updating of knowledge about the Hospice, relevant legisiative and regulatory changes and
developmenis within palliative care, all members of the Hozpice management team prepare regular reports and attend
Board mastings.

The Board of Directors

The Directars who served during the year ended 31 March 2020 and thareafter wera as follows:

Maureen Henderson OBE (Chairman Rabred 371May 207158)
Fonald Bowie {Chalrman = from 28 Awgust 2013)

lan Reid (Vice-Chairman)

Robert Caldensoad Jahn Kyla
Murray Cromar lan MacLeod
Surjit Chowdhary MBE Ally Mcl.aws

Bill Doak Brett Nicholls
Anice Gillespie Hazel Tomkins
Steuant Howe Graeme Waddell
David Hunter
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GClinical Governance

Clinical governance is the overall frameawoark through which the Hospice & accountable for continuously improving
climical, corporate, staff and financial performance. The philosophy of the Hospice is fo ensure the provision of high
quality clinical, emational, social and spirifual care for patients who have a prograssive, life-limiting lliness and support
for those who care for them. Therefore, healthcare governance i integral to cur service and praciice. The Board has
appointed the Clinical Governance Committee, comprising Directars with relevant skills and senior Hospice clinical staff
Io ovarsas policy and practice on these aspects of Hospice sarvices.

External Clinical Govarnance

The Hospice is authorised by Health Improvement Scotland (HIS) to provide Care Services. Itis also recognised as a
speciafist palliative care provider by NHS Quality Improvement Scotland and by NHE Greater Glasgow & Clyde
Inspaction visits each year ensure that the care provided is in line with the published regulations. As noted above,
respongibility for commessioning of specialist paliative care services has baen passed to the Community Health & Social
Care Parnerships (HSCP's), and the Hospice has established new relationships with these bodies io ensure the
continuation of a first class service to patients and families. The Hospice's primary refationship is now with Glasgow City
HSCFP which is now its commissioning body for the provision of clinical services. Formaksation of these new
amangenents i now kargely complele at local and national levels,

Risk Management

The Directors have charged the Risk Management Committee, under the chairmanship of the Chief Executive, with
supporting corporate and clinical risk management through the development and implementation of an appropriate risk
management framework. This framework comprises a steering group and three sub-groups producing robust risk
assessments and subsequent confrol measures across all departments. Risk management i co-ordinated and
supported on a day-to-day basis by the Hospice's Risk Manager, Risks in all areas inciuding clinical, financial, parsonal
and organisational are minimised with procadures in place 1o ensune the haalth and safely of patienis, visitors. voluniesrs
and =tafl and the securty of assetz. This struciure is oversesn by the Board's Audif, Chnical and Income Generation
Governance Committees, which report fo the Board on a regular basis. Through this sinecture, the Direcfors have
assassed the major risks o which the Hospics is exposed, These fall within the following areas:

Area Mature of Risk General deseription of controls & stralegy

Clinical care Caring for vulnerable persons Tha Hospice has robust and audited operational
Administering medications processes and controls and is highly graded in
Skin figsue vulnerabilify reguiatory inspections. This & suppored by
Infectons strong educational and HR functions for &l

invalved in the care function. Best praclice in paer
organisations s sought out and implemented. AN
activity is overseen by the Clinical Govermnance

Committes.
Buginess risks Importance of HSCP funding The Hospice maintaing good relations with its
Charity and other compefition commissioners and all supporters and has robust
Poor charity media coverage controlz In place to ensure best praclice is
Tougher data protection regulation  operated. An internal avdit programme covers all
Cosl increases material areas of risk. Operational groups address

all risk areas and plan strategy, which Includes
widening the supporter base, ensuring maximum
financial efficiency, and mambainng a sirong
communications function, Al activity is oversean
by the Audit and Incomea Generation Governanse
Committess,

The above rieke are inherant to the activities carmed out by the Hospice. Generally, the fikelihcod of occurrence (S
assessed as low, but the risks score highly because the consequence of an occurrence could be significant The
Diractors are satiefied thal sysbems are in place o minimse exposung,
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Information Governance

The Information Govermance Group, led by the Caldicolt Guardian and Data Protection Officer, has the remit o ensure
that all data, clinical and non-clinical, is safely and efficiently recorded and utilised and in keeping with national
recammendations. The group meet regularly to review and improve systems and processes. YWork continues 1o ensure
compliance with the new General Data Protection Reguilation (GOPR), and a new structure has been implementad in
line with guidelines from the Information Commissioner's Office.

Staff Governance

Tha Directors have appointed 8 Staff Governance Committae to reviaw matters redating to employmeant and human
resources within the Hospice and to advise the Board on best practice. The Committee is chaired by the Vice-Chairman
and Includes Direciors wha have relevant skills and experience. Meetings are attended by appropriate members of the
senior management team. The Committee monitors executive actions on employment issues and oversaw the suppon
af staff through the move fo the new Hospice location in 2018, & system of staff feadback surveys and the Hospice Joint
Consubtation Group {invalving staff and Board members) assistand inform the Commities on staff strategy for the future.
Following recant changes fo pay within the NHS, the Committee is now engaged with staff to review all present
employment Terms and Conditions with a view to putling In place up-dated arrangements which will enable the Hespice
and its staff to continue to provide 2 susfainable and high quality servica in the future.

Income Generation Governance

The Beard has appointed the Income Generation Governance Commities o raview fundraising strategy and activity,
Initially, s emphasis was on the work of raising funds towards the relocation of the Hospice building and the
development of services to young adults and fo wider cultural groups than presently access Hospice senvices. Now, the
group's main focus is the on-going fundraising of the Hospice, including In relation to the expected future demands of
an increased service provision, The Committes also co-opts independent members with relevant skill and experence,
and s attended by appropriate members of the senlor management and fundraising, supporter relations and retail
teams. The Committee meets and reports regularly to the Board.

Financial Govemance

The Haospice Audit Committes comprises of Direclors who have business and prafessional financial expertise and co-
opts independent members o complement that expertise where appropriate. AL present the group has one co-opted
member with experience of investment manegement. The Committee meets four fimes each year to consider all financial
matters relating to the Hospice and its subsidiaries. It receives detailed reports from the independent awdifors end
manages a cycle of detailed internal audit reviews which are also carried out on an independent basis.

The minutes of all Govermance Committees are reviewed by the Board as a standing item on its meeting agenda

Staff Remuneration Policy

All jobs within the Hospios and I8 subsidiaries carry a detailed job description which is evaluated using a system which
closely follows the "Agenda for Change” structure operated within the NHS. The system allocates points basad upon
pre-defined criteria, which polnts are used to determine a banding within which the job falls. This system applies to all
non-medical staff, whether clinical or non-cfinical. Job evaluations (known as *Matching”) are carriad out by twa senior
managers independent of the depariment under which the job will operate. Medical staff jobs are graded in line with the
standards applicable within the NHS in Scotland.
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{continued)]

Once evaluated, the salary rate is determined by where the job is banded within the Hospice salary scales. These are
similar in range but not tied to those operated within the NHS in Scotiand. Staff will generally rise through the salary
scale applicable to their job band, based on experience gained and the level of rasponsibility undertaken. Scale
increments are not contractual. The Hospice regularly consults with colleague and charitable organisations to ensure
that pay remaing reasonably i ling with that for simiar healthcare activities with fundraising and adminisirative

requirements.

The Hospice Board, acting on the advice of its Staff Governance and Audit Commiltees, reviews staff pay annually at 1
April each year. Consideration is ghven to incremental and cost of living increases, having regard to the affordability of
any award within the funding available to the Hospice. In the light of recent changes in the NHS Agenda for Change
schema, the Hospice is undertaking a review of all staff terms and conditions (o ensure that its pay structure remains

sustainable and compelitive for the fulure,

The pay of senior managers is determined using thiz sysiem and is subject to spacific review by the Hosplce Board.
Tha Hospice regards the Key Managemeant Personnal referred 1o in note 13 to the Financizl Statements as being the
Chief Executive Officer and Lead Medical Consultant.

Monitoring Achievement

Each of the above Governance Groups receives and reviews appropriate stafistical and financial reports to assist
them assess progress and set action plans in each of their areas of responsibilty. Such reports will include but are not

lmited o data on:

Chnical & Support Services Performance
Patient referrals, discharges and deaths
Bed availabilty, ccoupancy, and average patient stay
Community nursing cassload
Complaints and positive comments
Accidents, incidents and infaclion cantrol
Clinical audits

Siaff and Volunteering
Staff and velunteer numbers and hours
Absanca
HRE issues
Staff zatisfaction surveys and trands

Fundraising
Fundraiser and event cost efficlancy against targets

Contect and database management
Lottery recruitment and player numbers against targels

Retail point of sale data and profitabilty by outiet
Owerall cost of fundralsing relative to income generated

Financial
Incame, costs and capital spend against budget and last year

Investment risks and returns
Cashflow requiremants

The Board and all cperational depariments receive monthly financial statements and detailed financial
analysis on & gquarterly basis or on specific request.

Risk Management
Risk assessment sconng

Rizk management action plans
Aceidants, incidents and infection conbral
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(continued)
A Strategy, Objectives and Activity

O

Since iz inception in the 1980's the Hosplee's clinical services have grown from an original volundeer led telephone
support ine in 1985, to the development of day services in 1986, cutpatient and home care services in 1287, progressing
o a fourteen bedded Inpatient unit.in 1585, Hospice services have grown organically, responding to need and

oppertunity.

We now suppaort over 1200 new patients and families every year, and have developed our services to reflect the need
for a flexible, patient and family centred programme of care, with an ethos of suppering people io live as well as possibla,
for as long as possible, in the place of their choice.

The standard of our current care is recognised as very high, as evidanced by our consistently excellent assessments
frem Healthcare Improvement Scotland (HIS). There was, however, recognilion that care experence can be hampared
by the facilities. Patients and families had spoken to us about the distress they sometimes expananced Carlton Place,
with a lack of privacy and dignity and the chalienges thay faced with the fnpracticalities of its facilities. With this im mind,
in 2011, the team commenced a significant project to design and build 2 new 21* century hospice for the people of
Glasgaw.

To fund this design and baild project, the team planned and commenced a capital appeal for the overall project cost of
£21m. As previously reported, the Capital appeal target was met in June 2018 and full migration to the new facility took
place in the following Autumn.

Inzome generation via our two main streams for revenue funding remaing challenging. Around 40% of total costs hawve
historically been covered by NHS Greater Glasgow & Clyde, but, following the Government decision in Scotand to sea
the Health and Social Care saciors work mana closely, commigsioning and budgetary management was passed (o ong
of a number of new Health and Social Care Partnerships (HSCP's). In cur case, this is the Glasgow City HSCGP who
represent the two Integrated Boards with responsibilities in the Hospice's calchment area. The remaining 0% of
fundirg is met through charitable donations and event fundraising activity, The Hospice has a wide range of such income
streams, and with over 30 years of service delivery, our loyal supporter base ensures we are financially stable

+ Clinical Development

For several years, the development of services by the Hospice has bean structured round a rolling five-year sirateqy,
known as Vision & Values. This focuses an our clinical strategy which reflects aur aspiration towards modern, innovative,
inclusive palliative care sarices for peaple of all ages and from all backgrounds. Services are shaped around the neads
of the patients and families, reflecting the expectations of today and tomorrow's patients, A robust business strategy
funds our clinical aspirations.

Cur Clinkzal Strategy Vision and Yalues Vision & Values 2 {2014-2018) came 1o a successful end in April 2018 and
singe then, the Hospice team have had a clear focus on successfully maintaining care standards through our migration
ko the new Hospice. Mow that that is complete, we are again developing a 3-5 year sirategy, and are already working
on new service devalopments and improvements which the increased leval of faciities in Balahouston will allow.

The essence of palliatve care lies in the care which is delfivered. The Hospice is commitied to working in partnership
wilh staff and volunteers, patients and their families, external health and social cere professionals, and the wider

community. The consultation and development of each of our periodic strategies is a demanstration of this commitment.
A5 a result of this engagement the Hospice Mission statement, Values and Strategic aims have besn modified and

developed o be as follows:

Mizzion Sfatement
The Hospice's mission is o provide high qually, person centred care for all those affected by [ife limiing conditions,
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Hespice Valwes
We identified the following core values that are the foundations, the building blocks for our vision for fulure care

Person cenfred compassionate care
Walue all as part of the hospice community
Faimess and intagrity

Dignity and respeact

Striving for excellence

Strategic Alms 2018 = 2020

The five strategic clinical aims identified are presented in a clrcular format, giving no greater importance to any of the
aims, d
1. Lead - Maintain a leading position in the delivery paliativelend of life care through o bereavement care for all
those affecied by a life-limiting condiion,
2. Leamn - Develop our local, national and international research and knowledge sharing with a focus on the
education and support of the workforce providing care.

Collaborate - Develop and deliver our services in collaboration with patients, families and our pariners.
4, Transform - Develop a comprehensive digital strategy to supper effective defivery of our linical services.,

Reveal - Work with our communities to develop an understanding of the importance of good palliative/end of
life care through to bereavement care,

Ve will continue to co-produce services, maintain people’s enthusiasm and engagement in the strategy, and ensure
that there are further opportunities for engagemeant o make sure our Sarvices remain sustainable and fit for the future,

Strategy and developrents in specific functional areas have been as follows!
Inpatient Linit

Cur new inpatient unit has 18 en-sulte, single rooms with one double bed settee in each room. Thesse beds are divided
between 2 areas, one with & beds and one with 10 beds, Each of the rooms opens onto its own patio with access o
gardens at one slde. There is a communal seating area in the cenfre of the unlt, where patient and famifies are
encouraged to relax, Pecple can also use our family social area, which is situated between the two inpatient areas, o
share a meal or a cup of tea. :

To help suppodt the most effective wse of our mpatient faciities and new environment we have developed new
informaticn on our facdities, with support from partnership crganisalions.

In August 2018 it was egreed that @ programme of Quality Improvement work should be developed to support the In-
patient nursing team throughout the period of change, as they moved to the new Hospioe and a new care environment
in which individual patient rooms have replaced the fradiional ward setting.

Az part of the start-up work plan, it was agresd that Activity Tracking would be undertaken in the In-Palient wards o
establish bazaline data that would provide an evidence-based understanding of the in-patient nurses' activities and the

influence of the new environment on their use of tme and motion

The aim of Acfivity Tracking has been to shine a light on how nurses spend their time on-shift and, from the data, 1o
ientify opportunities that would increase the proportion of direct care patlents recelve, as well a5 o suppord
improvements in leadership, workforce planning, work processes and organizafional culture which positively influence
the quality of patient care. This project is ongoing and is influencing process improvernents allowing us to increase the
time our staff spend at the patients bed-side
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After negotiation with Healthcare Improvement Scotland (HIS), our regulator, in recognition of the work we hava baen
leading to transition young adults to an adult hosplee setting, HIS agreed to lower our age limit for patients fo 15 years
ok, on an individual patient basis, This change in licence allowed us o successfully care for a 15 year-old and to support
the individual and family in their prefarred place of cara which was in tha Hospice We ane cumentiy the only adult hospice

In Scottand with this provision.

Sirategic aims and activity for the Inpatient Unit contimue to Incude:

the efficient and effective ulilisation of inpatient bads

afficient and effective patient-centred discharge planning

patient centred drug administration wsing the patiept’s own drugs
impraving current processes to increase time spant at the bed-side
offering age-appropriate care to Young Adults

L e

Outpatient Services

Wiithin our new outpstient depariment, we now have 4 consulting rooms, a wel-equipped treatment room, 3
complementary therapy rooms, a beautiful hairdressing sakon, with & nail bar, as well as a relaxing waiting area oulside
our main day service lounge. Within the department there is also a multipurpose room, inwhich many different activities
can lake place, and fully accessible todets, shower and changing facilities,

These services play a crucial role in promoting independent living and quality of iife for patients and carers. The service
now includes medical and nurseded outpatient clinics, wenty day-services places on three days every waek, monthly
carer support groups, access to art and creative writing, Chi Gung and complamentary therapies for patients and carers.
The innavative roll-out of a volunteer befriending service delivered in the patient's home — the "Carer’s Choice” project
aliows carers to have @ short break, supporting their ongoing resilience. Oulpatient services are accessed by an
Inereasing numbers of patents with highly complex needs, including those with motar neurona disease and chrenic
obstructive pulmonary disease, This work confributes o the overall widening access arm of our strategy, and the staff
group are devaloping new skilis and modals of care which will benefit other groups and Hospice services in the fulure,

The service is developing fo meet the unique needs of Young Adults in transition to an adult Hosplce environment,
partnering with external agencies such as Enable, MDUK and PAMIS, to develop cur services based on the extended
needs of our widening patient group. We are supporting a number of young adults with a diverse range of conditions
who require paliative care, and although these numbers remain relatively small, gur experiance o date is that thedr care
requires a high level of resource, We curmently have young adults accassing a range of outpatient services including
counselling, art, psychatharapy, creatve art, nurse and medical symptom managemeant clinics, complimentary therapies
and hairdressing. The Young Adults Social Group has been givan the opportunity to scope the needs of these and other
young adults, and we are currently seaking additional support to fund the development of a Young Feople’s Social and
Therapeutic Group which will be the first of its kind within adult hospices in Scotland. This has enabled us to establish
stronger links with other charities and organisations, promoting referrals of young people who have been unaware of

the Hospice and its services,

We are now providing outreach clinics in both Castlemilk Health Centre and in the East Renfrewshire Health and Social
Care Partnership (HSCP) building and these continue to evaluate well. These clinics complement the medical and
nursing clinic provided within the hospice. This allows us io take services nearer to patients, work most effectively with
our HSCP colleagues, and give our patients more choice as to where they can receive their care

We have alsa formed a collaboration with Macmillan who are running weekly “Improving the cancer journey clinics”
within our day service department. Patients from all our services are accessing this clinic and are benefiting from more
rapid access to supporl wilth housing izsues, banafits and help at home. This joint working aliows people io be seen at
the right time by the right people to support them in their cancer journey. This team algo signposts people with non-
malignant disease to the correct sernvice. This service s currently being evaluated but already we have anecdotal
evidence that it is benefiting our patients and families. As we move forward with this clinic, it is hoped that people from
our lecal area will also attend the clinic, bringing a population unfamiliar with the benefits of our services info the Hospice
building

As a hospice, we recognised very guickly the benefit of being housed within extensive hospice grounds and a beautiful
park, and the fact that it could support an overriding sense of tranquillity and calm for the pathents, families, staff and
volunteers, The benefits on haalth and well-being, from just being able to walk and enjoy all that nature has o offer, are

well researched,
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A previous partnership with Glasgow Life, established whilst in Carlton Place, offerad several opporiunities 1o suppaort
haalth and wellbeing for all, one of these baing that it offers owver 40 free health walks (its Good Move programme)
across Glesgow every week, ked by voluntesrs, including two walks leaving from Bellahouston Sports Centre Café,
currently faciitated on a Wednesday at 1.30pm and a Sunday at 11am. It was decided to estabfish a pilof Hospice
Health Wakk to be held between May and August 2019 facilitating 13 health walks during this period. These walks are
supported by a new volunteer role within the Hospice - "Hospice Walk Leader’, by members of a walking steering groug,
and by day services staff. At present the walk i only open to day service patients. The results of this new initiative will
be formally evaluated but the respansa so far has been very pasitive with one patient saying:

‘Loved scanary, enjoyed company, enjoyed fresh air Would not be able to walk that far. Loved getting out”

We have also established a relationship with a charity called *Cyaling without Aga® which organisas volunteer facilitated
trishaw outings for elderly or infirm members of the pubic. Its overall objectives are similar (o those of our health walks,
We have securad funding for two tnshaws and are sesking appropriaie volunteers to establish a "chapter” based al lhe
Hospice.

Cur present day services which runs on three days each week rarely attracts younger patients, so.our family support
team is working with the day service team to design a service model which will support young adulis with malignant
disease in a different way

Generally, we are striving to ensure that our wonderful new facilites are used mosi effectively, allowing us to expand
our services with the aim of becoming a frue commaunity hulb,.

Strategic aims and activity for Outpatient Senvices continue to include:

» delivery of a range of ocutpatient sarvices tailorad io the Individualls need and preferences
" continuing development of outreach clinics in city suburbs and in the Hospice
»  ra@ising the prafile and promoling the full range of oulpatient senvices

Community Services

This team supports patients and carers who are unable to access olher services. The team's skill mix has been
developed and now includes staff nurses and sessions from a rehabilitation assistant, who support the clinical nurse
specialists and medical consullant The team have taken the opportunity to have a secondment o the Queen Elzabath
University Hospital Specialist Palliative Care team. This helped reinforce skills and leaming In the seconded nurse
specialist and the development of effective professional refationships with the new teams who have formed to deliver
care in the new Hospital. The community team also facilitated the sacondment of one of our in-patient nursing team into
the cormmunity role . This is contributing to the Hosplce's overall aim to continually develop and invest in its paople.

The team 5 working with bath Glasgow Gity and East Renfrewshire palliative care groups fo ensure that there is
appropriate partnership working to meet the strategic aims of each organisation. This has led to our community team
now being part of the induclion process for new community nurses in both areas

Mere effective Jolnt working In areas of deprivation, and plans to support several tests of change within East
Renfrewshire, to assist people in our communities to achieve their prefarred place of care,

The Team is now led by & nurse who successfully gained her Advanced Nurse Practitioner (ANF) gualification during
fthe year. The introduction of this role will help to further develop the team's capacity and capabililias.

Strategic aims and activity of the Community Team continue 1o inchude;

» further integration with Primary Care teams to promate joint working and shared care

»  further development of a multi-professional approach within the Hospice team to ensure effective and efficlent
working

» affective suppert for complex and high dependency patients and families at home
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Art Services

rt Sanvices have been part of aur services for many years and were initially managed axternally by Art in Hospital,
They became part of our core service in 2015 and as such have a place within our clinical stratagy . The Art Services
strategy s now developed and our artists are engaging with services across Scofland to extend their praciice and
participate in research to continually develop the model of care they pravide. This Inspiring team are working
collaboratively with academic leads io research and support the evidence base for Arl services in supporting an
individual's autonomy, and have played a pivotal role in reducing isolation, increasing self-esteem, and developing
trust with our young adult population who suffer from non-malignant disease, some of whom had not engaged in
creative work for many years as their disabilities increased.

Family Support Services

The family support services team offers care, information and support to patients and carers. Spiritual and religious
support is offered by chaplaincy services. The new Hospice has a suite of 4 counselling ronms and a beautiful, adaptable
children and young adults room, all within its own private area in the building

s The Extenged Buttenfy Project

Big Lottery funding is providing @lmost £500,000 over three years to enable the Hospice to develop an extended
children's bereavement service, which incluedes Young Adults from age 15 upward, and to develop the senvice for adulis
who support these young people. The praject commencad in Cetober 2096 and is actively co-producing samicas ta
meet idantified neads,

The funding from the Big Lottery allowed us to develop our first drop in for young people. This was created in 2016 in
response to the feedback received from the young people who attended the ‘The Forward Loaking To The New' (FLTTM
Jsummer workshops. The FLTTN project has baen led by a group of young people aged between 12 and 21.The project
alm wag to provide a platform for children and young people both pre and post bereavement who use the Butterfy
Service (which is part of the Family Support Sarvice) to explone and volce thelr thoughts on the transition of the Hospice
from the hiztoric Georglan building at Carton Place o the modem 215t century new build in Bellahouston Park, This
has been expressed through the creative arts, and the work produced has provided the content for an exhibition, which
was hekd at the conclusion o 'The Year of The Young Person 2018

In 2018 we launched the pilot for 2 young person mentoring service aimed at pre/post bareaved young paople to receive
support from a mentor (aither a peer volunteer or a volunteer with appropriate skilks and experience), Thiz was the first
of its kind in Scotland and our leamings from this pilot are being used to inform how we take this iInnovative service
farsard.

Cur adult monthly bereavement drop in has always operated as a shot to medium term suppor for people who have
been recently bereaved and s widely used by many Scoftish hospices as a means of peer bereavement suppart. The
drop in has offered informal support to newly bareaved people for a short period of ime, Intended as short-termn measure
of support, we reviewed its benefits on our refocation and decided to change the format of this support. Based on
requests from some bereaved clients who had been alfending the group for an extended period, we sef up a peer
support group which meets monthly within the Hospice, A new bereavement drop-in is now in place with a new modal
of suppaort to provide a drop in during the day and one in tha evening, again supporting patient choice.

The team have warked in partnership with Glasgow City and East Renfrewshire Council to engage with local school and
heafth-based partnerships for promation of a whole school approach to loss, grief and bereavement. A new toolkit to
suppart this approach was launched in May 2017 in East Renfrewshire and we have worked alongside the education

department in the development of this programme, which we have now faciliiated im our new premises.

Dutwith the new Butterfly Project, strategic alms and activity for the Family Support Service continue to include:

= Development of innovative support models within and outwith the Hospice and in partnership with other
providers, including a financial inclusion service and the Carers’ Choice project.

= Widening a multidisciplinary approach to providing psychalogical, emotional and spirtual suppon to patients
and families

* Developing more opportunities far volunteers to work within the servica

11
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Widening Access fo Hospice Services

The philosophy of widening access fo Hospice services has developed considerably. The culturally sensitive sarvicas
project, which began in 2008, has grown in sirangth, and the Hospice has begun to consider additional programmes
which come under the auspices of "widening access”,

Our Culturally Compatent Palliative Care group focuses on bringing palliative care and the senicas of the Hospice to
the ethnic minarities in South Glasgow, and fo raise the profie of these services within these commanities. This is
achiaved by continuous contact with community leaders, community groups, centres and places of worship, whilst
having regard to the views of those who have had personal experience of the services. We are continuing to educate
and develop our services, and staff, supported by cur aquality and diversity process. Parinership work with arganisations
such as The Councll of Ethnic Minority Voluntary Sector Organisations (CEMVD) and other local community leads s
helping us to scrulinize and develop practice across all depariments in the organisation,

We have bean working jointly with the Health Improvement Laad for Glasgow South to look at what approaches have
already taken place around understanding and accessing palliafive care services for under-representad groups and the
way farward. Links have bean made with the South Health Imprevement Team which have resulied in @ presentation
on the scope of hospice services and our commitment to inclusion to a variety of community groups in Govanhill and
Pollokshields. We have connected with Community Link Warkers based in the 3 GP Practices within Gowvanhill Health
Cenire and are continuing to expand our networks within the mast culturally diverse and deprived areas of our catchmant
area. This colleboration has led to the creation of a new volunteer role within the hospice to support community
engagement. Key considerations for this role have been fo recruit from the communities that are currently

underrepresented in ferms of access to hospica servicas,

The Learning Disabilities and Palkative Care Project cama to a formal end in April 2015 but engagement work and
raising awareness has continued. We continue to facilitate a key practitioners’ network which focuses on continued
education and sharing of best practice across our local NHS and beyond. We are developing & new initiative in
partnership with Enable Scotiand to facilitate joint |learning for student nurses who are on placament In both
arganisations, This will raise awaranass of the palliative care naeds of people with learning disabilities and share praciice
lzarming opporunities across general and learming disakility student nurses,

The Hospice's commitment to developing services for young adults is a key component of its strategic vision. Significant
engagement work has continued over the past year with organisations already supporting young adults with paliative
care needs. We have several young aduits who access our services and have established a young adults
Multidisciplinary Meeting, with the support of Consultant colleagues from the NHS, Our innovative way of developing
retationships and partnership working is lesding the way in young adult transiion i Scotland and we are being
recognised nationally as leaders in the fiald of ransition.

Strategic aims and activity in Widening Access continue o include:

= Further Equality Analysis

= Cuburally Competent Palliative Gare

* Palliative Care for People with a Leaming Disability
= Young Adult Service Development

Participation

The Hospice ensures the parficipation of people with personal experianca in the commission, design, delivery, and
evaluation of Hosplce clinical services. A range of approaches are undertaken to engage in effective participation in tha
Hospice with the experience of the patient at the heart of these.

Benefils of participation include that patents and families feel Informed and involved; their views and experiences ara
considered and valued; they are able to influence their journey of cane; they can express satisfaction or dissatisfaction
with their care; and they know they can influence planning and defvery of Hosplce services, Paricipation allows poor
experiences of care fo be ientified at an early stage, and remedial action taken, reducing or eliminating formal
complaints, Hospice services and service developments are continuously developed to be patient and family focused
and in response to expressed need, This also provides positive feedback for staff supporting their well-being and job

12
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The Hospice Participation Steering Group and Hospice Participation Forum joined in conversation to develop Together
as One’, the Hospice Participation and Engagement Strategy which is directing the organisational path for participation.

To highlight the work of the paricipation group and demonsirate the importance the hospice gives parficipation a
parficipation newsletter is now distributed across our community, including health and soclal care nebworks.

We have parlicipated in a series of Malional Awareness ralsing campaigns with events held at a variely of venues
including, Govanhill Health Centre, Govanhill Housing Asscciation Centre, Barrhead Health and Care Cenftre and
Eastwood Health and Care Cenfre. These events are often complemenied by newspaper aricles, radio inferviews and
social media posts, with excellent joint working between our clinical, volunteering, fundraising and communication
teams. These evenis are often complemented by newspaper articles, radio interviews and social media posts, with
excellent joint working betwean our dinical, volunteering, fundraising and communication teams.

Strategic aims and activity around Participation include engagement with patients, families, professicnals and public to:

* increase awareness of Hospice and pallialive cara services,
¥ promole an openness aboul death, dying and bereavement

*  develop clinical services in co-production with these stakeholders

v gnsure ready availability of information on Hospice services in accessible formats

Chinical Education

We have developed a new "Education and Workforce Strategy for Developing People and the Workforee Capacity
of Our Community”. We aim to combine the stralegic docurments which are driving change and fully utilise the expert
knowledge, skills and experience residing in the Hospice team to lead improvement within paliiative care in Scottand
and beyond. We are focussing on devaloping leadership, management and talent, acquirng commercial capacity,
releasing community potential, promoting heatthy lzaming, life and work and growing an innovation hub. Examples
of this work include providing placement opportunities for students with additional learning needs from Clyde College
and for for intemns on Project Search. These projects contribute to preparing people with significant disabilities for
success in integrated successful employmant. We are the first hospice across Scolland to engage with the Project
Search initistive. We have delivered Veices training for siaff and volunteers involved in engagement and
participation, aimed at developing effactive public invalvement to improve person-centred services, We confinue to
wark in partnership with NHS Greater Glasgow and Clyde (NHS GGC) to deliver a palliative care module accredited
by Caledonian and are actve members of the Communications group, rolling out foundation to advanced
communication skills education across care settings in NHS GGC.

"Getting it right for evary child” (GIRFEC) was introduced by the Scottish Government in 2008, This imposes a range
of duties that public services, including health and education, must undertake to support children and families. The
Hospice team supported by the GIRFEC Iead for Glasgow City's Education Depariment have developed the
GIRFEC capability of the Hospice, supporting us to extend its principles bayond children to our adult service users
as wall.

The Hospice Lead Consultant has led a group to consider the implications of the GDPR requirements as they affect
the Hospica. Woark continues o ensurs that all staff have a robust understanding of how this legistation impacis our

processes and roles within the hospice

Wa continug to ba viewed as 2 centre of excellencs and support kealth and social care profesgionzls in placemsant
opportunities including being a learning environment for Specialist Registrar fraining for Palliative Medicine
Consultants.

The Prince and Princess of Wales Hospice Brand and identity, track record, history, new facility, location,
sccassibility, car parking privacy, faciliies (disabled access) and amenities provide ideal cpporiunities for
corporatesforganisations to address and meet their corporate social responsibility (CSR) requirements and an
opportunity for individual chents/customers fo give somathing back by hiring our facilities.

We want our new home in Bellahouston Park to become part of cur community and “Events with a Consclence”
gives people an alternative venue choice for corporate requiraments, knowing that 100% of the surplus from events

are invested by the Hospice b support the care of patients and families
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Research

Research within paliative and hospice care has been raised on the national agenda with tha “Strategic Framework for
Action on Palliative and End of Life Care 2015" docurnent Ve have a seat on the national steering group for research

which suppaorts the implementation of this framework,

Part of delivering high quality palliative care across all settings is maintaining most up o data practice thauah awaranass
of and imvolvemnent in research, The Hospice has an established research group to éncourage involvement with external
researchers. The group has established a robust governance process and the framework for research within the
Hospice. This has informed the internal and external research currently being conducted. We are supporting a large
portfolic of research projects including:

C An art preject “Tracing Autonomy - supporting a person in living an autonomous life."

. An architecture project

¥ Piaylist for Life project

' Exploring the psychosocial impact of living with advanced Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease of
those attending two different models of palliative care

We are regularly approached to support an aver wider range of projects and are now pianning to develop our research
strateqy to complemeant the work previous undertaken on our research framework.

Infarmation Management

The E-health Group ensures that the e-health systems of the organisation are robust and developed in line with national
guidance. As new systems are put in place, the Hospice is incraasingly able to link into NHS electronic systems far
ratrieval of results, electronic referrals, access ta other clinical information and ardering clinkcal and facilities stores.

Clinizal Administration staff supporl all aspects of Clinical Activity, including corespondence, patient record
management and assisting with the routing of enquiries from patients and families to relevant care staff, The team have
been instrumental in improving the archiving of records, the transition to a paper-lite patient records system, and the
administration necessary to meet the requirements of GOPR.

+  Support Services

The Bupport Services team, including information and communication technology, reception, catering, comestics,
porters, ransport and maintenance staff support all departments in thair function in redation to dalivering care for patients
and carers. Suppaort services are ofien tha first face of the hospice and offering excellent hospitality is essential in their

everyday roke.

The reception team, which is well supported by voluntears, continues o ensure that every patient and visitor to the
Hospice feels valued and welcomed. Our new Hospice includes a much wider range of dining options, an extended
café, and dining rooms as well as naw areas within the Education suite and clinical facilities, Management and staff in
our kilchen has been strengthened to cater for the increasing demand from these areas, and new and improved menus
have been introduced, The Partering team assist Scottish Ambulance Service with the safe transportation of patients to
and from the Hospice. During the year, 87 inpatient transfers were made, including many with complex needs, as well
as a regular service provided to users of outpatient and day sarvices.

The Hospice continues to ensure that its IT systems are robust and fit for purpose, giving adequate access to the wide
range of information and governance necessary at both strategic and operational levels for the provision of Hospice
services. There has been a well-publicised increase in cyber-attacks which have targeted healthcare providers, and the
Hospice confinues to review its procedures (o oplimise protection.
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+* HE and Volunteer Services i

Dur dedicated team of staff and volunteers are the Hospice's greatest assat in its mission to provide consistently high
standards of care and service to patients and families. The way in which we lead, manage and develop our team of staff
and volunteers is essential to the provision of high quality care and service. Long-1érm success requires thorough
recrulting and retairing a well-managed, highly skilled and mativated workforce who have the right opporfunities to kam

and develop
The Hospice maintaing its gold level accreditation for Investors in People.

Strategic aims and activity in HR and Voluntesr Services include:

» Recruitment and Retention, ensuring that tha Hospica ks recognised both internally and externally so that people
want o be involved through work or volunteering. Policies and procedures are reviewed o ensure they ara
supportive o ndividuals in our warkfarce,

s Workforce Development, identifying the skills, knowledge and behaviours that are needed by our workforce to
deliver sarvices both now and in the future and how thesae will be resourced.

»  VWorkforce Engagement, through the Joint Consultalive Growp, staff forums and a range of other aclivities

= Communications

Succesaful press and PR campaigns continue to boost the Hospice's profile at home and overseaas, resufting in
increased awarensss of servicas and fundraising. The team played a significant role in supporting the successful Capital
Appeal and continues to support many aspects of Hospice activity, from the information available to service users and
the public, racruitmant processas, 1o support for our engeing fundraising. Professional presentation is essential fo ensure
that knowledge of the Hospice senvices and support is shared as widely as possible. A review of the emphasis of the
Hospice websie is undensay. A major upgrade of our branding under the banner “We are Glasgow's Hospice™ has been

a greal SUCCess.

= The New Hosplce Facility in Bellahouston Park

After a long perled of design, fundraising and construction, the new Hospice was formally opened on 30™ Detober 2018
by the Rt. Hon. Lord Provost of Glasgow and Lady Clark, after whose lale husband and Glasgow businessman, Sir
Arnold Clark, the building iz named. The facility was fully commissioned at that point and our full Hospice activities
transferred mmediately. The building has received widespraad acclaim, particukary from patients and relatives, but also
from the professional caring community and those involved with buikding developments nationwide. The Board,
management, staff and volunteers are delighted with and proud of this new facility and look forward to providing the
Hospice's services from it long into the future. So, it is worth recalfing the underlying reasons for the project and our call
for support from the City and pecple of Glasgow, at home and beyand.

The Prince & Princess of Wales Hospice has always been renowned for its excellent care.  Recent yesrs have seen
the Hospice being awarded top marks in every aspect of care assessed by Healthcare Improvemant Scotland. While
aur property in Cartton Place served us well for over thirty years, wa had baen running out of space resulting in difficuities
in defivering the kind of care that we sought to provide for our patients and their families. Planning regulations and listed
building status mean that Carltan Place could not be adapted any further to improve patient care and choice. Following
a robust research and scoping exercise, |t was decided that the best and only solution for the kong term cane of our
patients and their families, was fo create a purpose-built Hospice on a new sile.
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Qur new Hospice sits in 7.46 acres of ground in Bellahouston Park and is truly a 219 century state-of-the-ar building for
Glazgow that will now allow us 1o lower our age limit 1o 15 years and above, Amongst its facliies are:

A model of care using the Scandinavian "Sengetun” method which is a community approach putting the patient
and family first. This iz a proven model of care which buitds a familiar environment ensuring comfort and privacy

and we have brought this concept and developed it for use within a hospice setting. This building is the first
Hospice of its kind in the UK, if not the world, and will revedutionise pallistive care as we know it

« 16 private rooms, all en-suite, and each with its own private outside terrace, thereby enabfing patients to be
taken outside, even in thair beds, if they 5o wish.

*  Accommodation within each room for a famity member to stay avernight if desirad,
« 2 family suites which allow whola families to stay overnight bul sl be close at hand if they are needed.

« Age appropriate lounges for all our patients. For examiple there i a8 young people’s bounge for this age group
and other lounge areas for the more mature patient.

«  Gommunal dining areas which enable patients and their families to eat fogether and spend some farnﬂ'g,r time
fogether. There are also areas where patients and, if thay wish, their famibes can eat together but which have
complete privacy. This is particularly Important for patients whe may have difficulty eating and wha find it
embarrassing to do so in company.

= Atatal of B roome which are available for complementary therapy, consultation and intervention

= Seasonal gardens where pafients always sae colour, no matter the time of year that they are in the Hospice.
Additionally there ane a nember of courtyard gardens and ather garden areas for patients and famikias to enjoy.

» Extended amenities for our Day Care and Home Care patients which anable more people to benefit from the
array of therapies thal we provide.

In August 2016, following a rigorous tendering and subsequent value engineering process, the Hospece, though its
subsidiary, Hospice Developments Limited, entered a £16.4 million design and bullkd contract for the construction of the

new Hospice and its assoclated groundwarks and kandscaping with Balfour Beatty, an international contractor with a
strong Scottish base of high repute, The design and build contract format, coupled with the advanced stage to which
design had already besn taken, greally reduced risks to the Hospice of cost over-run, The Hospice management taam
took direct respansibility for the procurement and installation of fitings and aquipmant after construction. Disciplined
purchasing and project management brought the project to completion within the original budget, with an undar-spand
of abaout 1%,
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= Income Generation

The New Hospice project had an overall budget cost of spproximately £21 million. AL the outeet of the project, the
Hospice Board were confident that £6 milkon should be funded from Revenue Reserves, and a Capital Appeal
Fundraising Team was formed spacifically for the task of raising the additional £15 million for the project. Cver a Parmd
of five years, the team warked with high net wealth individuals and corporate supporters in Scottand, and with the
expatriate communities in London, New York and beyond, Additionally, during the course of the Appeal, the Hospica
Board decidad that all Revanue surpluses, beyond those required fo mamtain core reserves of & months' expenditure,
should be designated towards the Capital Appesl, and in June 2018, the Board was delighted io announce that the
farget commitments of £21m had been achieved. Thanks are repeated to all who provided this vital financial support,
from these who texted a single £5 donation to the several individuals and organisations whose donations extended to
six-figure sums, The new Hospice includes a modarn featurs to recognise thesa contributions.

The Hospice continues to review the likaly costs of running the new facility and providing the planned extension of
sanvices. Work has conlinued on the development of new income sireams and the strengthening of existing ones. These
initiatrwas include efforts to refresh and expand the financial contribution fram our shops and bittery and 1o nudune and
develop the many new supporter contacts gained from the capital appeal. As part of this process, an angoing review
and monitoring of all our income generating functions is in place, reflecting the challenging and competitive economic
condiions in which we oparate.

Corporate and Communily Fundraising

Mow that the Capital Appeal targets have baen mel and the Appeal closed, the attention in our fundraiging efforis has
been on our ongoing fundraising. The team has been strengthenad and refreshed and significant emphasie continues
on developing conlacts made through the Capital Appeal as well az widening the general supporier base across all
aspects of our fundraising, Successful evenis have been crganised with the expatriate communily in London and work
continues to develop interasting contacts in Naw York The team run around 20 lange events during the year, ranging
from tradiional dinners, a ball and an interesting range of challenges — running events, It's a Knockout and a Bubble
Rush event, in conjunclion with several other Scoltish hospices, are some examples of these.

New Business Developmen!

Since 2017, the Hospica has been working with the Langside College campus of Glasgow Clyde College on a project
to provide students of the College with meaningful work experience oppartunities. After a significant process of businass
planning, a new charity “Beauty with a Consclence” was formed as a Scoftish Charitable Incorporated Organisation
(SCIO) which will operate as subsidiary of the Hospica, but working on a joint basis with the College to provide work
experiance Ina real commarcial environment for students taking cowses in Beauty Treatments. This veniure
commenced trading in November 2018, with all future profits o be Gift Aided to the Hospice. Waork is also progressing
on developing the offering in our new café, and publicising our educational suite as available for 3 wide range of

conferences and smaller events,
Supporter Relalions

This team is tasked with improving and maintaining relationships with the wide range of our present and potaniizl
supportars, with managing our contacts databasa, and providing assistance to our fundraising and campaign feams
Since its creation in 2016, we have seen positive benefits from this work.

The charity sectar in general is facing significant economic challenges, and in particuiar, something of a backlash against
instances of canvassing activity by some major national charities. The Hospice has never used any of the practices
which have been rightly criticised in these instances. In May 2018, the GDPR came into effect, and all Hospice teams
continue ko review their activities to ensure compliance with these Regulations. Charity fundraising will anly suryive if
charities are allowed to make new contacts and generate new supporters, Our main emphasis remains on establishing
supporter relationships on a persenal level, and we tharafore make limited use of electronic contact, ensuring that there
iz clear legitimate interest for both parties in any approach made, Our systems ensure that all approaches are
sympathetic, sensitive and limited in number and repetition. No complaints were received in 2019-20 (2018-1% none)
arizing from fundraising activity, and indeed, we receive compliments for the sensifivity of with which we carry out this
impartant area or our work
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Retfair

The 201920 financial year ended with our shop stock at 17 units. A new shop has been leased in the Gorbals area and
opened in Autumn 2018, Our central refail hub continues to better manage donations and distribution of stock to our

retall outlets. Strategic plans include consolidation of arrangements for a central hub and the epening of a specialist
furniture cutlet. The management of the ratail function now involves active suparvision at shop level with KPI's and more
training opportunities for shop staff,

Lotfery

The Hospice lottary confinues o provide an important income stream for our fundraising, and, being sanficanily based
on door-fo-door canvasing and collection, provides an important contact for areas of the community which are
somelimes harder to reach by other methods. Nonetheless, we continued to actively persuade players fo convert io
electronic membership, chiefly by direct debit payment. Lottery members were statwart supporiers of aur Capital Appaal
as well as regularly participanis in our bwice-yearly prize draws. Development of our website has made electronic
membership more accessible. We continue in our efforts to grow our supporter base more widely but ncreasing
competiion from national lotteriss, who provide a lower percentage of tumover for good causes, means that increasing
player numbers is challenging,

18



THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICGE
DIRECTORS' ANNUAL REPORT AND STRATEGIC REPORT

{eanfinued)
4. Financial Review
Going Concern Basis of the Financial Statements

In praparing the Financial Siatements, the Direciors have had regard to the financial pesiion of the Hospice as evidenced
in the Censclidated Balance Sheet on page 26, to the detalled budgets prepared for the follewing financial year 2020-21
and to the likely sources of income during that period.

The Directors are salisfied that presentation of the finandial statements on the basks of the Hospice as a going concern |s
appropriate, and the financial statements have therefore been presented on that basis.

Principal Funding Sources

It costs sfightly more than £5 milllon each year to run the Hosplce's current facllity and services: New senices and
service exteansions will require additional funding and will be expanded &s funding becomeas available.

The Hospice is now partly funded by a confribution from Glasgow City HSCP on the basis of a Service Level Agreement
{SLAY which has regard to the policy oulined In Memorandum of Understanding (MOU} between the independent
Scottish Hospices and the Joint Integrated Board which oversees the activities of the HSCPs in Scotland. This replaces
funding previously recelved from NHS Greater Glasgow & Clyde. There is no longer a guantified percentage of cost
which these arrangements should fund, but the MOU recognises that provizion of Specialist Palliative Care in Scotland
is a partnership between the public care providers and hospice charities. In particutar, the annual funding contribution
provided by these charities has been quantified at over £50 million, and it is important for the continuation of that
contribution that funding of tha charities, of which the Hospice Is ona, remains stable and predictable. The financial
specifics of each Hospice's funding are laid out in each SLA. The Hospice is pleased that agreement has been reached
with Glasgow City HSCP such that our funding for the mexd 3 yvears will not fall below the evel agreed for 2018-19. An
increase of 3 percent has been agresd for 20:20-21. Nonetheless, this funding historically has not included any recurming
element for capital expenditure, or profects such as bereavement, art or music, nor for many other aspects of holistic
care chosen to be provided by the Hospice and enjoyed by our patients and families.

in 2018-20, HSCP funding of E2153.872 (2018-19; E£2,032 504) was received. Funding imcluded free iszue
pharmaceuticals and supplies valued at £116.618 (2018-12: £104,774). Contibutions by Glasgow City HSCP amounted
to aver 40% of the incurred costs of direct patient care, broadly similar to 2018-18

In April 2019, the rate of amplover contnbutions (o the NHS pension fund was increased significantly. The indepandant
hospices have been in discussion with the Scottish Government regarding this additional unwelcome cost, and it is
hoped thaf funding will be increased accordingly, |t is less clear, however, that acceptable support will be available to
help hospioces meet the financial challenge presented by the considerable increases in pay implied in the new NHS pay
arranrgements. This matter also remaing under discussion, but indicative funding conditions would themselves impose
unviable additional costs on many in the sector, including the Hospics. Clearly, we recognise the wider financial
pressures being experienced within Heath and Social care organisations, but the Board also recognises ifs responeibility
to manage the organisation within achisvable income budgats.

The Hospice greatly values its close ralationships with itz local NHS and Social Cars organisations which benefit mamy
patients and families in the Glasgow ares, and we recognise the significant financial constraints applying within thesa
organizations. The Hospice meals regularly with them to discuss co-operative development of the Hospice function, and
appropriste funding for s activities, and expects to further develop such co-operative working in the coming year.

The remainder of the funds required to F:rwide'thé Hospice services falis to be reiszed through a combination of grants, '
diract donations, fundraising events and investiment and legacy income. This total is now around £3 millien annually.
2018-20 was again a successiul year for our fundraising, securing necessary ongoing funding remains a challenging
task
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The Hospice benefits graatly fram the service of a farge number of volunteers in a variety of capacities.

Result for the Year

Im 2018-20, the Hospice again recorded an operating deficit. The operating deficit for the year was £868,818 (2018-18
£112,805), a significant reason for the [arge increase in the deficit was our unrealised koss on our investment portfolios.
All investments across the world were adversely impacted by the global pandemic, Cavid 12, The unrealised loss on
our portfolios amounted to £512.527 of our operating deficit.  This continues to reflect the strategy of the Board and
executive team to ensure the highest standards of patient care and to ensure that funds received are invested in
charitabla activities without delay but with dus regard o the reserves policy outlined below. Legacy incoma at £218,748
was considerably lower than in the previous year (2018-19 £634,415) and below our long term average. All these
sources brought the deficit for the year o £651,128 (Z018-19 Surplus £436 419). Undoubtedly the operating cosis of &
much larger building with extended services will be higher in the future, but efforts are well underway- to further
strengthen income generation, and the Board are confident that the balance of income and expenditer2 on normal
operating activites will start to recover soon. 2019-20 was another challenging but safisfactory financial year in which many
long term plans end aspiratons came (o frustion.

Reserves policy

The Directors have a policy whereby reserves (excluding those which are restricted to particular uses or which represant
funds ted up in present fixed assets, and which are therefore unavalable for expenditure on the charitable purposes of
the Hospice) will b2 retained to generate income to meet future operating costs and proposed capital expenditure
Reserves are alzo avallable to aliow the development of services and positively evaluated fundraising progacts in lire with
strategic goals without the need to wait until formal third-party funding Suppodt &= avaitabie, and to provide sacurity in the
event of a temporary reduction In income levels. The Directors have decided that a level of Genaral Reserve aquivalent
to around & months of ordinary expenditure (abowt £2.5 million) is prudent 1o ensure the Hospice's future viability and
enabia it bo continue 1o provide an appropriate and free service to its patients, but. Deectors consider that is appropriata o
carmy a higher level of General Reserve while the Operating Result remains negative and significant cost pressure remains.
Al 31 March 2020, the General Reserve stood at £4, 751 468 (2019 £5,240,767). Full analysis of the reserves of the
Haospice and their purposes is on pages 30 to 32 of the Financial Statements which follow this Report,

Investmant policy

Funds which are available for investment are placed having regard to the expected future cash requirements of the
Heeplee, returns available and the assessed rigks attached to each and overall invesiment,

The Direciors have the power o invast in such stocks and sharas in tha UK as they see fit. Such investment decisions are
managed on 3 discretionary basis by professional stockbrokers. The stockbrokess” rermi is to achieve a balance between
income and capital growth without exposing the Hospice o unnecessany sk,

During 2018420 the Board decided to move E4million of cash holdings into twe separate EZmillion investment

portfolios to be managed by professional investment advisors, namely, Quilter Cheviot and Brewin Dolphin. The
investment was made with the lang-term view of capital growth of the investments and fo generate dividend income
which weuld be reinvested into the portfolios. With the global pandemic, Covid 18, occurring during March 2020 this
adversely impacted our investment portfolios valua at our balance sheet date of 31® March 2020, With our long-term
wview on investrments and with strong investment managers we look forward to a brighter future for our porticlios.

Subsaquently our iInvestments have bounced back and at present have recouped all losses and ara now showing a
slight gain on our initial invesiment tolal of E4milllen. We understand that the future for equities is still uncertain

partcularly with the potential for another spike in Covid 18 cases.
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3. Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Annuwal Report and Financial Statemenis in accordance with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the incoming rescurces and application of resources,
including the income and expendifure, of the charitable group for that pericd. In preparing the financial statements, the
frustees are required fo:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» phserve the methods and principles in the Charnties SORP,

¢ make judgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent;

= stale whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

= prepare the financlal statements on tha going concem basis unless it is inapproprate to presume that the charity
will continue in business,

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the charitable company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statemeants comply with
the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and the group and hance
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and othar irregularitias.

The trustees are responsible for the maintanance and integrity of the corparate and financial information included on
the charifeble company's website, Legislation in the United Kingdom govemning the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdiclions.
Statement of Disclosure to the Auditor
In so far as the rusiees are aware:

= fthere s no redevant audit information of which the charity auditor is unaware; and

= the trusiees have faken all steps that they ought o have taken to make themsehves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that mformation.

6. Auditors

In arger to follow best practice the directors decided that it was appropriate to tender The Prince and Princess of Wales
Hospice's audit for the year commencing 1st April 2020.

We have a long standing refationship with Whylie and Bisset LLP and have asked that they retender for the audit along
with a shortlist of other reputable audit firms

The appeintment of our auditors for 2020-21 financial yvear will be approved via a special rezolution at a board meeting
within this financlal year.

This Report was approved by tha trustees an 25" Novernber 2020 and signed on their behalf by:

U3

ROMNALD BOWIE
Chairman
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Opinion

We have audited the financhal staterments of The Prince & Princess of Wales Hospice (the 'parent charitable company)
and itz subsidiaries {the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise tha Group and Parent Charitable
Company's Statement of Financial Activities, the Group and Parent Charitabde Company’s Balance Shests, the Group
and Parent Charitable Company's Cash Flow Statements and the related notes, including a summary of significant
accounting palicies. The financial reporting frarmewark that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicabie in the UK and Republic of Ireland {United Kingdom Genarally Accepted Accounting Practice),

In our opinion the financial statemenis:

« give & true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent charitable company's affairs as at 31 March
2020 and of the group's and the parent charitable compamny's incoming respurces and application of rescurces
including its income and expenditure, for the vear then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2008, the Charities and Trustee Investment
{Scotland] Act 2005 and regulations 6 and 8 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland} Regulations 2006 {as
ameanded},

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (LK) and applicable faw.
Our respons:bilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
finencial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent charitable company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our awdit of the financial statements in the UK, mcluding
the FRC's Ethiczl Standard, and we have fulflled our other ethical responsibiliies In accordance with these
requiraments. Wa balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

QL opinicn

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 15As (UK} require us fo report 1o
you where:
= the frustees' use of the going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropsiate; or
» [he trustees have not disclosed in the financial stetements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the charity's abliity to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for &
period of at least twelie months from the date when the financial statements are authorisad for issua.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the report and financial statemenis, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon, The trustees are responsible for the ofher information. Our opinion on the
financial statements doss not cover the other information and, except 1o the extent otherwise explicitly siated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our respansibility s to read the other information and, in doing
5o, cansider whether the oiher information is matedally inconsistent with the financial statemenis or our knowledge

cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materislly misstated. I we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are reqguired to determine whother there is a material misstatermant in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information, If, based on the word we have parfarmead, we conclude
that there is & material misstatemant of this other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to rapart in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our eplnion, basad on the work undertaken in the course of the audit
« the information given in the directors” annual report & stratagic report for the financial year for which the financial
statermnents are prepared Is consisient with the financial sistemeants; and
& the directors’ annual report and strategic report have been preparad in accordance with applicable legal
raquiramants.

Matters on which we are required 1o report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent charitable company and its envirenment
abtained in the course of the audit, we have nol idantified material misstatements in the directors' annual report and

strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 and the Charibes Accounts
(Scotland) Regulafions 2006 (as amendead) requires us to repart to you if, in our opinion:
= adequate and proper eccounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
= the parent charitable company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
raturns; of
certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by kaw are not made; or
we have nat recaived all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditor

A5 axplained maore fully in the Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement set oul on pege 21, the trustess (who are also the

directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents which give a true and fair view, and for such internal confrol as the trustees determine is necassary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due io fraud or eqror,

In préparing the financial statements, the frustees are responsible for assessing the chardy's ability to continue as &
going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related fo going concem and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend ta liquidate the charity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but ta do 0.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have besn appointed &s auditor under section 44(1)(c) of the Charites and Trustee Invesiment {Scotiand) Act 2005
and under the Companies Act 2008 and report in accordance with the Acts and relevant reguiations made or having

effect thereunder

Qwr ohjectives are to obiain reasonable assurance abaut whether the financial statements a3 3 whole are free from
material misstatemant, whether due o fraud or error, and o issue an auditor's reporl that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with

|SAs (UK) will atways datect a material misstatemnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be axpected to influence the economic
decisions of usars taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Raporting
Council's website at www. frc.org. uk/auditorsrespansibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's repart,
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Use of our report

This report is made sclely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of part 16 of
the Companies Act 2008, and to tha charitable company’s frustees, as a body, in accordance with regulation 10 of the

Charities Accounts [Scotland) Regulations 2005 (as amendead),

Our audit waork has been undertaken so that we might siate to the charitable company's membars and rustaes thosa
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company, the charilable
company's members as a body and the charitable company’s trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report. or
for the opinions wea have formed.

Empson

Jenny Simpson 168 Bath Street
Sanior Statutory Auditor Glasgow
For and on behalf of Wylie & Bisset {Audi) Lid GZ4TFP

Dale: 25" Novemnber 2020
Witle & Bisse! (Audit) Lid (s eligible fo act as an auditor in ferms of ssction 1212 of the Companies Act 200G
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Urerosiricbad Resbriiciod Tl Unrestricted Rastricted Total
Fumnds Funds Funds Funds Funds Fundls
Maba 020 20240 3020 20148 2015 019
E £ E £ E £
Ineame and endowmants
from: _
Donations and legacies & 1,268,203 1,268,203 1,683 138 778,73 2,431 B&7
Charitable aclivities 6 2133814 141,141 2,274,855 2,063,025 183,324 2,256 349
Other irading aclivities T 2844 214 - 2844 214 2,883,854 2983934
Investments ] 41,907 - 41,907 48,010 36,010
Oiher Incoming L 51906
B | 94 755 94,788 61,8908 i
Total Incame 5,432 Bo3 141,141 6.624 034 B.7ER 011 972 065 7.7ED,OGE
Expendifure on:
Rai=ing funds:

Cther trading activities 10 2 265 543 2,285 541 2,202 8564 99 024 2383892
Charitable activities 11 4326 087 175,776 4 501,843 4 754 339 185,588 4 939,925
Total Expenditun: 8,501,610 175,778 6,767,306 7047 207 276,510 7323817
Met e
incomel{expanditure)
and net movement in {108, 717) (34, 635) (143,352} (259,188) BEG 445 435,249
funds before galns and
losses on investments
Reszlised Gains on e
estenis 5,153 - 5,153
Unreabsedilossesyigains. 16 (512 8927) (B12,927) 170 - 170
on imesiments
Net /
incomed(expanditure) (B18,481) {34 B35) [651,125) (258, 028) BO5 445 436,419
Transfers between funds 19 - BET, 707 (BET 70T -
Het movement in funds (G5, 481 ) {34,635 {651,126} 4205 581 T8 436,418
Funds reconciliation
mfdm“ g 26,208 988 BE,B17 25,295 8ES 24,780,287 79178 24,859 466
bt 19 24592477 52282 24,644,758 25,208,960 86,817 25,205,885

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year, All ncome and expenditure denve from

continuing activiies,
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Fixod assets:

Tangible aseats
Investments

Total Fixed Assets

Current assefs:
Debtors

Stock

Short term deposits

Mate

Cash at bank and in hand

Lizhilifies:

Creditors falling due within

ONE year

Met Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Reserves:

Restricted funds
General

Unrestricted Funds

Designated income funds

Fixed asset rasen/e

Service development resene
Mew Hospice developmean! project
Other seqvice developments

Oiher unrestricted funds

General resarva

Total funds

Thase financial ﬂnh@#
!

RONALLD BOWIE
Chairman

DAVID HUNTER
Director [

B a8 the board on 25 Novembar 2020 and signed on its behalf by
R ———

Company Registration Mo, SC084008
The slatament of Hospice Feserees and notes on pages 23 o 47 form part of thess financial stalements.
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19

2020 20149

E E

18, 797,009 19,908 201

5,404,342 Bg2

23,195,351 19,910,093

476,241 538,531
14,861 18,058
924,308 2,115,059
1,715,425 £ 030,672
3,130,925 6,802,120
1,681,617 1,417,228
1,449,408 5,385,792

24,644,750 25,295 B85

52,282 86,617

18,791,005 19,908,201

50,000 50,000

4 751 468 5 249 TGT

24 644,750 25,295,885




THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Linrasirictad Rastricted Todad Unrestricted Rastricted Total
Fumnds Fumds Flangds Funds Fungds Funds
Mote 2020 2020 2020 208 2018 e
£ 3 E £ E E
Income and endowmenis from:
Domations and legacies § 1,247,023 1,247,023 1653136 F-RER 2,431 86T
Charteble activities 6 2,100,269 141,141 2,241 410 2,063,025 183,324 2,256,348
Other trading activities T 2,875,437 2875437 2844 755 2,944,756
Inwvestments 8 105,526 105,526 B0, 126 Eﬂ,iiﬂ
Other Inceming Hesoures 9 94,755 94, 765 51,906 61,908
Total Income 8.423.012 141,141 6,564,153 B, 76E 943 572,055 7,735,004
Expanditure on:
Raising funds’

Crthar trading activities 10 2,200,761 - 2,200,751 2,265 8006 a9 04 2,360,830
Charitable activities 11 &, 2685 SER 175,775 4441 364 4,752 330 185,546 4,937,925
Total Expenditurne &, 466,348 175,778 6,642,125 7022 145 276,610 7,298,755
Met incomefexpenditure}
and net movament in funds 43,337 535 77,872 98 GO 445 436,249
before gains and losses on ': ! e ? ‘ J e )
investments
Realisad Gaing on iInvaztmenls 4,153 - 5,153 - =
Unreallzed (Losses)igatns on 18 {512,527 - (512,827 170 - 170
invesimenis
Met incomel{sxpenditire) (651,111 (34,835)  (BBE,74B) (260,026} BOS 445 436,418
Transiers between funds 19 - - - GET.7OT (GET. 707 -
Net movemant in funds (551,111) (34 GA5) {585, 746) 428 501 T.738 436,418
Funds reconcillation o~ i
Total Funds brought foreard 25,208 968 BE,S1T 25,295 885 24 TED 247 174 24,859 466
Total Funds carried forward 18 24 657 857 h2282 24710139 25,208 968 aG.adr 15,295 685

The Statement of Financial Aclivities imcludes all gains and losses ecognised in the year,

All income and expenddure derive from conbinuing activities
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Fixed assels:
Tangible asaets
Invastmants

Total Fixed Assats
Current assets:

Defitors
Shart term deposits

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilties:

Creditors falling due within

one year

Met Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Reserves:!

Restricted funds
General

Unrestricted Funds

Designated income funds

Fized asset regene

Benvice developmant resemne

MNew Hospice developmeni project
Othar service devalopmarnts

Other unrestricted funds

General reserve

Total funds

These financial MTDEM he bzard on 25 Movember 2020 and signed on ils behalfl by:

RONALD BOWIE
Chairman

DANID HUNTER
Direcior

Company Registration No. SCO64008

U

16
16

17
22
2z

18

18

18

19

2020 2015

3 E

16,841,000 108,332

3,405,343 1,803

23,246,362 110,225

557,736 20,816,922
924,398 2,115,859
1628775 3,110,193
3.111,908 26,043,074
1,648,122 B57 414
1,463 T&T 25,185,660

24,710,138 25,205 B85

62 282 86,917

10,841,000 10,908,201

50,000 50,000

4,766,848 5,240,767

24,710,139 25 295 885

Tha staiamant of Hospice Reserves and nobes on pagas 33 {o L7 faim pad of thess financial stalemants
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
CONSOLIDATED & CHARITY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Cash flows from operating
activilies;

MNet cash provided by (used
in} operating activities

Cash flows from Investing
activities:

Purchase of tangible fixed
assats
Sale of Tangible Fixed Assels

Investments added

Sale of investments

Gift Akd donation
Investmant income received

Net cash (used in} provided
by investing activities

Change in cash and cash
equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents
brought fonsard

Cash and cash equivalents
carried forward

Group Charity Group Charity

Nate 2020 2020 2013 2019
E £ £ E

24 741,655 1,321,698 1,913,606 {3,195,018)
(379,056) (137.962) {4,804,201) (41,548)

2,114,210 2,114,210

(4,118, 968) {4,118,568) . L

207,744 207,744 - .

= 13,622 = 14,115

41,907 41,507 36,010 36,010

(4,248 373)  (3.983,677) (2,653.981) 2,122,787

{3,506, 708) (2,671,979) {740,375) {1,072,231)

22 8,146,531 5,226,152 6,856,906 6,288,383
22 2,639,623 " 2,554,173 6,146,531 5,226,152
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
- STATEMENT OF HOSPICE RESERVES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Restricted Funds Unrestricted Funds
General Designated Funds
Facilities Carar's Butterfty Cycling Other Capital Capital  For ofher Fiwed
Development Cholce  Extension without  Oingoing Appeal  Development  Service PCEEH General Total
Propect Project Age  Activities Project  Extension Reserve Resene Funds
Group £ E £ £ £ £ £ £ E £ £
At 1 April 2019 5,363 11,416 54,929 15,204 50000 19,909,201 5,249,767 5,295,885
income 21,000 16603 B7,538 16,000 - - 5575119 6,116,260
Expenditure {B,305) {18308}  (126,280) {15,200 (7.683) - {6,591,610) (6, 767,386)
Surplus (Deficit) 12 695 {1,705] (38,742} &0 {7,68&3) . (616 491} (651,126}
Transfars:
Capital Expenditure - - 138,027 (138,017) -
Depraciation : E - - [256,2149) .. 256,219 =
Sale of Property : - ¥ - ’ B
Net Mowement - - (118,192) - 118,192
At 31 March 2020 1805800 971100 16,187.00 BO0.00  7526.00 50,000:00 19,791,009 4,751,468 24,644,759
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
STATEMENT OF HOSPICE RESERVES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
{Conlinted)

Reserve Policies and Analysis

As explained in the Directors' Report, the Hospice has recantly completed the construction of @ new hospice facility
on the south side of Giasgow and which will replaced the old Hospice building on Carfton Flace. The Directars' policies
for reserve retention reflect the substantial demands of that project and ralated senvice developments as follows:

Fund accounting

Resiricted funds are subject lo restrictions on their expenditure imposad by the donor or grantor of through the terms
of an appeal

Unregtrictad funds are avallable for use at the discretion of the Directors in furtherance of the general objectves of
the Hospice.

Dasignated funds are unrestricted funds earmarked by the Directors for particular purposes.
Restricted Funds

Genaral Fungs

As exptained bebow, the Hospice receives funding from a vanety of sources which s provided under specific
requirements related to its expenditure, whether capital or revenue. When such funding has been received in advance
of the related expenditure, the resulting ressnses are categorised as Restrictad Resanes.

» A balance of £6,363 was brought forward from 2018-18 o ba spent on the cost of equipment improvements
We also received further grants totalling £21,000 during 2018/20 for equipment improvements. Of these funds,
£8,305 was spent, leaving a balance of £18,058 to be carried forward to the coming financial year.

# The Carers' Cholce programme enables the Hespice o support palient carers by providing shorl breaks cunng
which the Hoapice takes direct responsibility for the patient in thedr own home. £16,603 was received from Shared
Care Scotland during the year. This was added to the sum of £11,416 which was brought forward from 2018-18.
£18,308 was spent leaving a balance of £3,711 to be carmed forward to the coming financial year

» In2016-17, the Hospice was awarded funding for three years to enable the Butterfly Extension Project which
will build on service developmant generated through a previous Butterfty Project. The *Butterfly® projects hawve
been designed to develop services for child and youth bereavement support and have been and are being
funded by awards from the Big Lottery. Funding for the present Extension project is received quanerly in
advance, During the financial year, £87, 538 was recaived, of which £126.220 was spent by 31 March 2020,
togathar with the surplus of £54 929 brought forward at March 2019, this left a balance of E16 187 1o be carried
forward to the coming financial year.

s In 209617, £33.070 was received from the Burdett Trust for Nursing related to a leadership imifistive to be run
by the Hospice far nurses working In hospices within the NHS Greater Glasgow & Clyde area. At March 2019,
a batance of £16,208 was held to fund future similar projects which are expected (o take place in the coming
fingncial year. During 2019/20 £7.683 was spent and the batance of £7,526 retained for 2020421.
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
STATEMENT OF HOSPICE RESERVES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(Continved)

Unrestrcted Funds - Designated Funds

Designation of furds is based on the overall group position. Details of the designated funds are as follows:

Designaled Sanice Development Resens = New Haspice Development Project

A neceasary part of a successful capital fundraising eppeal B the underlying commitment of tha organisation to the
project, financially represented by its willingness to commit a significant portion of its resenves to the project The
budget for the total capital cost of the Hospice's Development Project, and the coats of fundraising over a numbaer of
years was set at £21 millian, In 2011-12, the Hospica Board commitied a sum of £3 million of Reserves to that purpose,
and a further £8.9 milion was designated towards the project between 2012-13 and 2017-18. Expanditure on 1ha
project fully absorbed all funds hedd in the Restricted Fund for this development, and the balance of expenditure was
chargad against the Designated Fund. The final espenditures im 2018-19 fully absorbed the balamce of £3,211,046
brought forward, leaving & balance of £237,926 to be funded from General Reserve during the year. The final cost
outturn for the completed project was within bedget by around 1%.

Designated Sarnvice Development Resane — Other Service Exlension and Business Development

The Hospice i also involved in & wider range of activities directed towards the widening of access fo and to the
extension of the scope and size of its service provision. Specific addifional funding is usually sought and obtained for
such projects, but a halance of £50,000 has been retained 1o allow for any imminent unfunded requirements

The Board have aiso determined that these funds should be made available to pump-prime suitable projects aimed
at developing the fundraising capacity of the Hospaca.

Dezignated Rxed Assel Resenve

The funds included in this Resarve reflect the present book value of the fixed asset faciliies which are required by the
Hospice to enabide it to camy out or fund its charitable activities. In accounting terminalogy, this is stated to be the
future cost of depreciation of these a=sats, but the main significance of the Reserve is thal it reprasents resenes
which are iliquid and are not available for expanditure on the charitable activitles of the Hospice

Oithver Unrestricted Funds

General Resarve

To provide security in the event of a temporary reduction in income levels, it is necessary o retain a level of General
Reserves such that the Direciors, sarvice users and staff have confidence that the Hespice will be able fo continue its
charitable work despite any fulure financial challenges which mey arise, In the context of the other requirements of
the Hospice, explained above, the Directors have decided that a normal level of General Reserve equivalent o around
& months of ordirary expenditure is prudent to ensure the Hospice's future viability and enable it to continue 1o pravide
an appropriate and free sarvice to its patients. Considaring the resulls for the year and capiial expendifure this has
resulted in a decrease of E498 290 in General Reserve. The operating costs of the new facility will take some tima to
establish with the accuracy aveilable for the previous faciily, adjustments to staffing levels required for service
axtension, and the future pay rabes required to atiract appropriste staff, the Directors consider that is appropriate 1o
camy a higher level of Genaral Reserve during this time.
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1. Accounting Policies '

{a) Basis of preparation and assessment of going concern

The Financial Statements {Accounis) have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention with items
recognised al cost or fransaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant note(s) to these Financial
Statements. '

The financigl statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice:
Accounting and Raporting by Charities preparing their Financial Statements in sccordance with the Financlal
Reporting Standard appicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the Financial Reporting Standard
zppliceble in the United Kingdom and Republic of reland (FRS 102), the Charities and Trustee Investment
[Scotfand) Act 2005 and the Chanties Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as ameandad).

The Financial Statemants consolidate the results of the wholly owned subsidiary companies Hospice Enterprises
Limited and Hospice Developments Limited as well as the results of the confrolled subsidiary SCIO Beauty with a

Consclence.

The financial staternents are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monatary
amounts in these financial staterments are roundad to the nearast £,

The charity constifutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102,

Going concam

The Directors consider that there are no material uncertainties about the charity's ability to continue as a going
CONCET.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors have had regard to the financial position of the Hosplcs as
evidenced in the Consolidated Balance Sheet on page 26, o the detaled budgets pregared for the following financial
vaar 2019-20, to the likely sources of income duning that period,

Thee Direciors ane satisfied that presentation of the financial statements on the basis of the Hospice as a going concem
is appropriate, and the financial statements have therefore bean presented on that basis.

(&) Income recognition

Income is recognised once the charity has enfitlement to the income, it is probable that the income will be received
gnd the amount of income recaivable can be measured rediably.

Legacy gifts are recognised on & case by case baesis following the granting of probate when the
administratorfexecutor for the estate has communicated in writing both the amount and setfiement date. In the
event that the gift is in the form of an asset other than cash or a financial asset traded on a recognised stock
exchange, recognition is subject o the value of the gift being reliably measurable with & degree of reasonable

accuracy and the titke to the asset having been transfemed to the charity,

Interest on funds held on deposit s included when receivable and the amount can be measured refiably by the
charity; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the bank.

Income from government and other grants, whether ‘capital’ or “revenue’ grants, is recognised when the chanty has
entitlerment to the funds, any performance conditions attached to the grants have been mel, it is probable that the
income will ba receivad and the amount can be measured reliably and is not deferred

Incoma recelved in advance of the provision of a spacified service is deferrad until the criteria for income recognition
are met

Incoma from fundrasing events operated by the group is credited to Income and Expanditure account in the pariod
im which the event toak place.

(3ift Add and similar tax recovenes 2re credited fo the income heading which gave risa to the 8K recovery.

Material donaticns of assels, services or facilibes are included at the value 1o the Hospice where this can be
reasonably quantified. The value of services provided by volunteers is not included in the Financial Statements

Capital grants and capital appeal contributions are credited through the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account to a Restricted fund until the expenditure is incurned,
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSFICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1. Accounting Policies

(eanfinuad)

ic) Expenditure recognition

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the charity
ta that expenditure, it s probable that settlement will be required and the amount of the obligation can be measurad
reliably.  All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis, All expenses including suppost cosls and
govermnance costs are allocated or apportioned to the applicable expanditure headings.

» Expenditure on charitable activities includes Specialist Palliative Care and other activities undertaken o
further the purposas of the charity and their assoclated support costs;
v Raming funds = other trading activities includes fundraising costs and shop Costs;

Irrecoverable VAT is charged as & cost against the activity for which the expenditure is incurred,

(d} Donated services and facilities

Donated professional services and donataed faciities are recognised as income when the charily has control over
the itern, any conditions associated with the donated ftem have been met, the recaipt of @conomic benefit from the
use by the charity of the item is probable and that economic benefit can be measured reliably. |In accordance with
the Charities SORP (FRS 102), the general volunteer ime is nol recognised.

On receipt, donated professional senvices and donated facilities are recognised on the basis of the value of the gift
to the charity which is the amount the charity would have been willing to pay to obtain services or faciities of
eguivalant economic benefit on the open market; @ corresponding amount is then recognised in expEﬂdlth in tha
perod of receipt.

() Allecation of support and governance costs

Support costs have baen allocated between govemnance costs and other support coste. Governance costs comprisa
all costs inveolving the public accountability of the charity and its compliance with regulation and good practice.

These costs include costs related to statutory audit and legal fees together with an appropriate apportionment of
overnead and support costs,

Governance costs and support costs relating o charitable activities have been apportioned based on time spent
The allocation of support and governance costs is analysed in nate 12.

(T Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Heritable Property is stated st depreciated cost. Fallowing the implementation of FRS102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in UK and Republic of Irefand’ the parani company is adogpting a policy of not revaluing tangible
fed azzels,

A renview for impairment of heritable property is carried out If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying valua amount of the properly may not be recoverable. The new Hospice bullding will net be depreciated
because it will be maintained to a high standard and no depreciation of the building will ocgur.

Depreciation is provided on a siraight fine basis on fixed assets for the purpose of writing off each assat aver its
estimated useful lifa at the following rates:

Orher heritable property(incl New Hospica) 0-4% pa

Praparty refurbishmant 0% pa

Eguipment 25% p.a

Patient transport 125% pa.

Oiher motor vehicles 25% p.a

Fixtures and fittgs in leased pramises aver the period of the lease {fram 2 to 15 years)

(q) Fixed asset investments
Invesimeants are stated at markel vaiue.

(h} Debtors
Trade and other debtors are recognised at the setflement amount due afier any trade discount offered.
Prepaymants are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due,
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCGH 2020

1. Accounting Policies
feontinued)

{i}Stocks

Stocks of bought in goods are stated at the kower of cost and net realizable value. As it is not practical o value
itams donated for resale on receipt becauss of the velume of low value [tems, they are not recognised in the
financial statermants untl they ane sold.

i Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and cash in hand includes cash and short term highly liguid investments with a short maturity of thres
maonths or ess from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account,

{k} Creditors and provisions

Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting from a past event that
will probably result in the transfer of funds to a third parly and the amount due to selile the obligation can be
measured or estimated reliably. Creditors and provisions are normally recognised at their setflemnent amount after
allowing for any trade discounts due,

il) Realised gains and losses

All gains and losses are taken 1o the Statement of Financial Activities as they arise. Realised gains and losses on
invesiments are calculated as the difference belween sales proceeds and thelr opening carrying vaklue or their
purchase value If acquired subsequent to the first day of the financial year, Unrealised gains and losses are
calculated as the difference bebween the fair valie al the year end and their carrying value. Realised and unrealised
invesiment gains and losses are combined in the Statement of Financial Activifies,

{m}) Employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised az a llabilily and an expense, unkess those costs are
required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or ficed asseis. The cost of any unusad haoliday entitlement is
recognised in the peried in which the employee's services are received. Termination benefits are recognisad
immediately as an expense when the charity is demonstrably commitied to terminate the employment of an
employes or to provide termination banefits.

in) Pension schemes

The company cperates a defined confribution pensicn scheme which requires contributions to be made o a
separately adminisiered fund. Employer's contribulions are charged o the Consolidated Income and Expendiiure
Account in the period in which they become due, In addition, staff who are eligible are members of the National
Health Service Superannuation Scheme for Scotiand.  This s a multi-employer defined benefit schems. The
Hospice is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and Eabilities in the schame on a consistent and
reasonabla basis and hence this is accounted for as though a defined confribution scheme as per above,

(o) Taxkation

The company has charitable status for tax purposes. Accordingly, the company is potentially exempt from Exation
in respect of income or capital gains recaived, o the extent that such income or gains are applied to exclusively
charitable purposes. The trading subsidiary is subject to Corporation Tax, but this is relieved by the transfer of all
trading surpluses fo tha Hospica.

2. Legal status

The company is limited by guarantes and does not have a share capltal. ©On 14 July 1930, the Eem‘elanr of State
at the Department of Trade authorised the company ip dispenss with the word “Limited”

According to the Memorandum of Association of the company, every member undertakes o contribute to the assets
of the company in the event of its being wound up whide he is a member, or within one year afier he ceased to be
a member, for payment of the debis and liabilMies the company contracied before he ceased to be & member, and
of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributors amongst
themsahas, such amount a5 to be required, not exceeding £E5. On 31 March 2020 the charity had 52 membears.
The number of mambers is limitad to 500
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

3. Financial activities of subsidiaries

a. A summary of the financlal activities undertaken by Hospice Enterprises Limited is set out below:

2020 20149
£ £
Turnover 50,601 28,178
Cost of sales {31,028) (19.099)
Adminkstration costs (5,951} (5.964)
Profit before taxation 13,622 14,115
Taxation - -
Donation to parent company 13,622 14,115
The assets and liabilities of the Hospice
Enterprises Limited were:
Fixed assets - ;
Cument assets 65,774 55T, 258
Currant liabilitas (B4, 774) [556,256)
Total net assets 1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000

Aggregate share capital and resenves

The wholly cwned trading subsidiary Hospice Entarprises Limited, which s incorporated in Scotland, carries out
fundraising activities with surpluses donated to The Prince & Princess of Wales Hospice by way of gift aid. The
company carmies out trading activities for the charity located within the Hospice and its curment assats and liabilities
at the year-end were related to that activity, This year the subsidiary reported a profit after tax of £13.622 (2019:
£14,115). The charity owns the entire share capital of 1,000 ordinary shares of £1. A summary of the frading resulls

is shown above.

b. A summary of the financial activites undertaken by Beauty with 2 Conscience (SCIO) is set out below:

2020 2019

£ E

Income from donations & grants 21,179 21,567
ncome from charitable activities 33,646 2.035
Income from rading aclivities 18176 7,156
72,901 37 558

Expenditure on chartable sctivities {59,257) (16,403)

Expenditure on other trading activities {20,803} (21,478)
(Deficit)/Surplus {16,158) T

Taxation + -
Funded by Parent Company {16,159) T
The assets and liabilities of Beauty with a 2020 2019
Consclence (SCI0) were: E E
Current assets 15,827 42 B75
Currant lizhilities [31,009) {42,0898)
Total net assels (15,382) 777

*Beauty with a Conscience” was formed as a Scottieh Charitable Incorporated Organisation (SCIO) which wil
operate as subsidiary of the Hospice, but working on a joint basis with Glasgow Clyde College to provide work
experience in 8 real commercial environment for students laking courses in Beauty Treatments. This veniure
commenced trading in November 2018, with all future surpluses to be fransferred o the Hospice
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THE PRIMCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

3. Financlal activities of subsidiaries
{eonfinuead)

c. A summary of the financial activities undartaken by Hospice Developments Limdted is set out balow:

2020 20198
£ E
Turnover including interest receivable 10,850,914 .
Costs 19,800,859 -
Met {loss Mprofit 50,045 .
Taxation : s
Dongtion to Parent Company 50,045 =
The assetz and liabilities of the Hospice
Developments Limited were:
Fixed assets . 19,800,569
~ Current assets 318,586 516,518
Current Fabilitizs (318,885) (20,316.356)
Total net assets 1 1
Aggregate share capital and reserves 1 1

The wholly owned trading subsidiary Hospice Developments Limited, incorporated in Scoftand, organised, and
cversaw the development of the new Hospice facilities,

4. Rolated party transactions and directors’ expenses and remuneration

Direciors, semor management and their families may benefit from the charitable services of the Hospice in the
ardinary course of its work. Provision of such services is indepandently subject to the same clinical referrai criteria

and process as s applied to all members of the public

Directors, senior management and, ther famidies may purchase event tickels and bid for avction prizes 3t such
events on the same commercial basis 2s such ilems are avaikable o other suppariers of the Hospica,

The Diraciors all give freely their fime and expertise without any form of remuneration or other benafit in cash or
kind (2018-19: Enll). It &= the charly's policy o not pay expensas to rustesas.

Total donations by Directors, senior management and their families amounted to £23,749 (2018-18 £68,987)

During the year no Director, senicr manager or their families had any parsonal interest in any contract of fransachon
entarad into by the charity (2018-18 nona).

The only relatad parties, with which the Hospica has fransacted during the year, are the company's subsidiary
companies, Hospice Enterpriises Limited, Beauty with a Conscience, and Hospice Developments Limited.  All
frading surpluses of Hospice Enierprises Limited have bean paid to the company in the form of donations. The
deficit of Beauty with a Consclence has been subject to an Independent Examination by the Hespice's auditors
The deficit will be funded by the Hospice. Hospice Developments Limited has made a profit and this has been paid
to the comparny in the form of donations.
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

5. Income from donations and legacies

Group Charity ﬁrnup Charity

2020 2020 2018 2018

£ £ E E

Donations

Capital Appeal . - 778,731 778,731

Dihers 1,040 455 1,028 275 1,018,721 1,018,721

1,040 455 1,028,275 1,707,452 1,797,452

Legacias 218,748 218, 748 634415 634415

1,258 203 1,247,023 2,431,867 2,431,867

B, Income from charitable activitles

Group Charity Group Charity
2020 2020 2018 2019
Specialist Palliative Care E £ £ E
HHSHSCP 2,153,672 21563872 2,082,594 2,082 594
Beauly With a Conscience 33 545 2 2 =
Grants recabhvad 57,538 RB7.538 173,755 173,756
2 274 G55 2.241,410 2,256,340 2,256,340

Income from charitable ectivities includes €2, 153,872 (2018: £2,082,504) recaivad from Glasgow City Health and
Social Care Parinership towards running costs of the Hospice services. There are no unfulfiled conditions or
contingencies associated with these government grants.

T. Income from other trading activities

Group Charity Group Charity
2020 2020 . 2019 2019
E £ £
Events & fundraising Income 1,116,189 1,116,188 1,158,752 1,186,752
Lottery income 836,909 836,209 B59.975 BED. 975
Trading Income . 822 338 H22 339 928,029 926,029
Retail income BB. 77T - 39,178 =
2,044 214 2875437 2 503 834 2 844 756

E. Investment income
Group Charity Group Charity
2020 2020 2018 2019
E E £ £
Hospice Enterprises Limited - 13622 . 14,115
Hespice Developments Limited - 50,045 - -
Dividend incama 24 239 20 2349 . -
Interast from short tlerm deposits 12,668 12,642 28,010 a5 010
41,007 105,528 38,010 50,126
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9. Other income - Group & Gharity

2020 2018
£ £
Student education - 1,000
Kitchen and café incoma g4 755 50 908
04,755 51,906
1. Raising funds — expenditure on other trading aclivities
Group Charity Group Charity
2020 2020 2018 2018
£ £ E £
Direct costs of fundraising events 461,024 461,024 461,645 461,649
Lottery prizes and expenses 402 538 402 538 432, 356 432 398
Costs of rading activity 754,581 754,651 750,230 TEHD, 230
Cosls of retall actavity 64, T82 - 23,062 -
Expenditure on capital appeal - . 01,024 01,024
Other fundraising costs 582 648 582 548 625,531 625,531
22685543 2,200,761 2,383,592 2,360,830
11. Anaﬂ.&is of expenditure on charitable activities
Specialist Palliative Care Group Charity Group Charity
2020 2020 2019 2019
E E E £
Staff Costs 3.274 655 3,252,834 3,181 385 3.191.385
Depreciation 256,218 256,218 155,031 159,031
Governance costs (nofa 12) 33,312 29,768 32,368 30,369
Support costs {note 12) 186,837 186,837 177,757 177,757
Other 750,620 T15, TG 806 485 a0 485
g 501,843 4 441 364 4 167 027 4 165,027
Loss on Sale of Hospice Properly - - G687 108 aar, 108
Costs of 3ale of Hospice Propery - - 85,780 BS, 790
4 501 843 4 441,364 4,939 525 4 937 925

12. Allocation of governance and support costs — Group

The breakdown of support costs and how these have been allocated between governance and other support costs
Iz shown In the table below:

2020 Other Basis of
Cost type , Total Governance support  apportionment
allocated related costs
£ £ £
Staff costs 207,597 20,760 186,827 Staff time
Total 207 597 20,760 186,837
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2019 Other Basis of
Cost type Total Governance support apportionmeant
allocated related Ccosls
E E £
Staff costs 197,508 19,751 177,757 Staff time
Total 187,508 18,751 17, 787
Governance costs: 2020 2019
£ £
Auditor's remuneration 12,552 12,618
Support costs (see above) 20,780 19,751
33,312 32,369
Breakdown of governance and support costs Dy activity;
Eugg:; Governanca s
E
Specialist pallative care 186,837 3332 220,148
ort GEowe
Euggﬁ : roance —_—
E
Specialist palliative care 177,757 32,369 210,126
13. Analysis of stafl costs and remuneration of key management parsonnel
Group Group
2020 2018
e £
Sglaries 3,625,934 3,651,405
Social Security costs 295,057 323813
Employer's Pension costs 338,920 267 465
4, 280911 4,242 483
Key management personnel remuneration 280,253 261332
Mone of the directors received any remuneration or expenses during the year{2018 Nil}.
The disclosures with regard to key management personnel include sanior medical staff.
The number of employees whose employes benefits fall within tha fallowing bands are as foliows:
2020 2019
£ £
1

£90,000 - £100,000
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The average weekly number of persons, by headcount, employed by the

charty during the year was:

14. et incomelexpenditure) for the year - Group

This is stated after
charging:

Depraciation

Loss on disposal of Hospice property
External suditors’ remunaratian

Other services
Subsidiary audit fee

Subskdiary Independent examination

MWon-audit services

15a. Tangible Fixed Assels — Group

Gost or valuation
At 1 Apnl 2018
Sddifions
Transfers
Disposals

At 31 March 2020

Depreciation

AL T Aprll 2019

Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

AL 31 Mareh 2020

Met book value
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2018

Ho. No.

154 164

2020 2019

£ E

256,219 169,031

- TrZ 858

9,009 9418

2,000 2,000

1,543 -

1.350 1,200

Heritahie Equipment Naw

Properly & Vehicles Hospice Total
£ 3 £ £
151,041 254 147 15,800, 669 20,246,057
138,027 = 138,027
- 008,915 1900,936) .
151,041 1,342,110 18,880 933 20,384 084
06,522 240,334 - 335,855
6,385 243 824 = 266,219
102,917 490 158 - 533,075
48,124 851,852 18,500,833 18,701,009
54 518 53813 18,800,869 18,5908 201
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16k, Tangible Fixed Assets - Company

Cost or valuation
At Apnl 2018
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 20200 -

Depreciation

At 1 Aprd 2019

Charge for the yvear
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 March 2020

Met book value
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2010

16, Fixed Azsct Investmeants

Groun & Company

Listed investments at cost:
At 1 April 2018

Sddibons

Diaposals

At 31 March 2020

Change in market value of listed investments:

AT April 2018
Unreafised Gain/{L.oss) in year

At 31 March 2020

Market value at 31 March

Company

Unlisted investments at cost;
At 1 April 2019
Additions

At 31 March 2020

Toetal investmenis

Heritable Equipment Meow

Property & Vohicles Hospice Total
i E £ E
151, 0s1 284,147 - 445, 188
- 1,047,983 18,940,933 15,988,656
151,041 1,342,110 18,940,933 20,434, 084
Big, 522 240, 334 - 336,856
g, 395 249 824 - 258 219
102,817 480 158 - B3, 078
48,124 451,952 18,540,933 19,841,009
54 518 53,813 - 108,332

2020 2019

£ E

Te2 TR

4,118,968 -

{202, 551) -

38917099 T2

170 -

(512,927) 170

(512,757} 170

3,404 342 Bo2

1.001 1,001

1,001 1,001

3,405 343 1.893
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16. Fixed Asseol Investments{Cont)

The company holds all the shares of Hospice Enterprises Limited which is registered in Scotland. This
comparny was formed to carry oul fundraising activities for the Prince & Princess of Wales Hospice from
April 1886, In Movember 2011, the Hospice formed ancther wholly cwned subsidiary company, Hospice
Developments Limited, to organise and oversee the devalopmant of the new and replacement Hospios

facility,

Hospica Enterprises Limited made a trading profit of £13,622 in 2018-20 (2018-19 £14,115), all of which
was gifted to the parent charily. The company therefore made neither a profit or logs during the yvear (2018-
19 £nil). At 31 March 2020, it had net assets of £1,000 (2018 £1,000).

Beauty with a Conscience made a deficit of £16,153 In the penod o March 2020,

Hospice Developments Limited made & profit of £50,045 2018-20 (2018-19 Enil) all of which was gifted to
the parant charity. The company therefore made neither a profit or loss during the year (2018-1% Enil). At

31 March 2020, it had net assets of £1 (2018 £1).

17. Debtors

Event income receivabls
Ircarme tax racoverabie

Other deblors and prepayments

Hosplce Entarprisas Lid
Beauty with a Conscience

Hospice Developments Limited |

18. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

New Hospice project
Sundry creditors & accrued
charges

Dafarred Income

Taxation and social security
Hospice Developments Lid

Beauty with a Conscience

Creferred Income comprises:

AL 1 April 2018
Feleased o Income
Reacehved and deferred

At 31 March 2020

Group Charity Group Charity
2020 2020 2019 18
E £ E £
64,575 64,575 120,868 120,968
82704 B2 T B2 517 02,517
328,872 326,220 306,716 290,709
- 63,501 . 556,256
- 20,686 38,330 -
= = . 19,756,472
476,241 B57,736 638,531 20,816,922
Group Charity Group Charity
2020 2020 2019 2019
E £ £ E
418,885 - 559.914 -
B54, 928 B53 323 673,457 573,457
621 5658 621,558 182,657 192 58T
76,135 76,136 79,129 79,129
- 297 105 - -
12,271 12,271
1.661.517 1648122 1417328 857,414
Other Lottery Event Total
Incomes Subscriptions Incomes
£ £ E £
- 77,082 114 575 182 557
- (77.882) {114,575) {182 557)
541,749 70,804 - B21,558
541,749 70,809 - B21,558
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19. ﬁn.t‘ll!jl‘:h of charitable funds - Group

Analysis of
Fund
Maovements

Unrestricted
Funds:

Fixed Assels
Mew Hospice

development
project

Other service
developments
Total
designated
funds

Geneal funds

Total
Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds
General

Capital Appeal
Fund

Total
restricted
Tunds

TOTAL
FUNDS

As at1 As at 31
April 2019 Income  Expenditure Transfer GainsiLosses) March 2020
E 3 E E E E
18,900,201 - - {118,192) - 19,791,009
50,000 - = = 50,000
19,958,201 - - {118,182} - 19,841,009
5,248 767 6,482,893 (6,501,610} 118,192 (507, 774) 4,751,468
25,208 858 5482 B3 {6.591,610) - (&O07,7T4) 24 592 477
BE,O17 141,141 {175,776) - 52,282
86,917 141,141 (175,776) ] 52,282
25205885 6,624,034 (E,767,386) {507,774) 24644 759
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18. Analysis of charitable funds - GroupiConf)

Analysis of
Fund
Movements

Unrestricted
Funds:

Fixed Aszzats
Mew Hospice
developmant
project

Other service
developments
Total
designated
funds

Genoral funds

Total
Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

General

Capital Appeal
Fund

Total
restricted
funds

TOTAL
FUNDS

20. Met assets over funds = group

Tangible Fixed assets

Fixed Azzat Inestiments

Debtars
Stock
Bank & Cash

Craditors

As at1 As at 31
April 2018 Income  Expenditure Transfer Gains/{Losses)  March 2018
E £ E £ E E
18,252 864 - 855,237 19,908,201
3,211,046 - - {3,211,046) .
50,000 - - 50,000
22 514,010 : - (2554 B09) - 19,958,201
2,266 277 B, 788,011 (7,047,207) 3,242 516 170 5,248 TGT
24 TBO,28T 6,788,011 (7,047 207} aar,. a7 170 20,208,963
79,179 193,324 {186,566) * 85,817
- 778,731 (91.024) {687, T0T) -

79,170 972,055 (276,610) (687,707) = BE,917
24 B5S 466 ¥, 780,066 (T.223,617) . 170 25295 8BS

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total

Funds Funds Funds 2020

E E £ £

- 18,791,009 19,791,002

3,404,342 . 3,404,342

476,241 . 476, 241

14,861 - 14,861

2,637 641 50,000 82282 2,639,823

(1,681,517} {1,681 ,517)

4,751,458 19,841,008 52 282 24 644,750
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Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total
Funds Funds Funds 2019
£ £ E £
Tangible Fixed assais 19,908 201 = 18,808 201
Fixed Asset Investmenis gaz = - BS2
Debtors 638,531 - - 638,531
Stock 18,056 - 18,058
Bank & Cash ' 5,009,614 50,000 BB,217 6,146,531
Credifors (1,417,32E) - (1,417,328)
5248, 76T 19,858 201 BG.017 25 2495 BES
21. Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities
Group Charity Group Charity
2020 2020 2019 2019
£ £ E £
Met income for the year (651,126) (585, 7486) 435 419 435 419
Adjustments for;
Loss/(Gains) on investments 507,774 507,774 {(170) {170)
Investment Income received {41,907) (105,528) {(36,010) {50,1286)
Depreckation charges 266,215 256,218 159,031 158,031
Loss on sale of Hospice property - - GE7T,108 GAa7, 108
Costs of sale of Hospice property - - 85,790 85, 7a0
Decrease (increase) in Stock 3,187 - (6, 206) -
Decrease (increasa) in debiors 162,280 458,271 355,528 (4,750,24T)
Increasa (decrease) in craditors 505,219 780,708 232,115 237477
Met cash provided [used) by
operating activities 741 BBS 1,321,608 1.913 606 {3,195,018)
22, Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Group Charity Group Charlty
2020 2020 2019 2015
E £ £ £
Short term deposils 924,308 524 398 2,115,959 2. 115,958
Cash at bank and in hand 1,715425 1,828,775 4,030,572 3,110,183
Total cash and cash equivalents 26396823 2,554,173 6,148,531 5,226,152
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23. Operating lease commitments

At the reporting end date, the grouwp and company had outstanding commitments for fulure minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

Within one year 64,155 41277
Between bwo and five years 204 461 425 148
In over fiva years 139,585 155127
488 202 B21,552

24, Redundancies

Dunng the financial year redundancy payments totalling £42.911 were distributed, this was in the main due to
streamilining at management level There is no plan to continue with any further redundancies and we as an
amployer endeavour to retain all our staff members but in the curmrent economic climaie nothing can be ruled out

25, Pensions

Staff who are eligible are members of the defined benefit National Health Service Superannuation Scheme for
Scoltand. This Is a muli-employer defined benefit scheme. The Heospice is unsble to identify #s share of the
underlying assets and liakilities in the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and hence this is accounted
for as though a defined contribution scheme. The Hospice confributed 14.9% of an employves's basic salary and
enhancements which will result in an annual commifment of approximataly £210,000 at year-end rates and
mambership (2019 £150,000). Employer contribution rates under this scheme incressed fo 20.9% from April 2078,

The group opevates a defined contribution group persenal pension plan under arrangements with an independant
insurance company. The company contributed between 3.0% and 13.5% of an employee's basic salary, resulting in
an annual commitment of apprexdmately £150,000 at year-end rates and membership (2018 £122,000). Effective
minimum rates of emplayer contribution increasad to 3.6% from Apsil 2018,

26. Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation and Uncertainty

In the application of the company's accounting policies, the Trustees are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions 8bout the camying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumpiions are based on historical experience and other facicrs thal ane
considerad to ba relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimaie is revisaed, if the revision affects enly that period, or in the period
of the revision and future pericds if the revision affects both cument and future periods.




The foliowing pages 50 and 51 are unaudited, but have been extracled from the foregoing Financial Statements
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
FIVE YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
£ £ £ E E
Expenditure:
Warkforcs 3,738 483 3,881,503 3,553 A51 3,402 545 3.4684,193
Depreciation 258,219 150,031 195,695 107 659 278,718
Other charitable expenses 844,842 740,728 HO08,672 820,659 B79,470
Total expenditure 4,839,624 4,590 262 4 566,218 4 510,863 4 622,379
Met Operating incomes:
Retail contribution 248 578 207 477 230,279 287,265 347,000
Lattery contributian 434 23T 420,405 496 625 50S, 654 472 BE0
Fundraising events 855,165 605,103 568 028 445,332 635,667
Donations 768,403 BO1 458 538,142 409 483 E43.379
Grants received 87,538 183,324 214 8608 46,251 26,687
Mon-group investmant incoma 41,807 36,0190 a1.584 127.535 137,025
{Lossigain on invesiments (212,827) 170 1,421 5,260 13,545
Other 94 755 51,906 39,845 52418 41,415
1,815,878 2 304 BE3 2231533 1,870,223 2,317,767
NHS/HSCP 2,153 872 2,082 5094 2148812 2,149 521 2,119,116
Total operating Income 3,969,750 4 477 457 4 360,345 4,119,744 4,436,883
(Deficit)Surplus '
on operations (869,874) (112,805} (175.873) (391,119) (185 496)
Lagjaces 218,748 634,415 1,120,708 182,743 2,285 587
(651, 128) 621810 044 835 (208 371) 2,100,085
Excaplanal Investment Gain . - - - -
Capitzl Appeal - GaT, 70T 1,323,236 3,054,816 1,462,303
Disposal of Cariton Place . (772898 = - =
(Deficit)/Surplus for year (651,128) 436 419 2,268 071 2,845,445 3,562,380
Mumber of staff
Headcount 157 164 163 162 159
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THE PRINCE & PRINCESS OF WALES HOSPICE
FIVE YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Tangible asseots:
Fixed assats
Invastments

Current assaets:
Dablars & Stock
Shart term deposits
Zash on hand

Gurrent liabilities:
Sundry creditors

Met current assets

Aecumulated funds
Restricted income funds
Capital Appeal Fund

. Unrestricted Funds
Designated incomsa funds
Fixed azzel reserve
Sen'ice Developmant
MNew Hospice
Other Sarvice

Orther unrestricted funds:
General Reserve

2020 2019 2018 2017 2018

£ E £ £ £
19,791,008 18,509, 201 19,252 964 7,314, 765 4. 774,261
3404, 242 Bo Tdd 62,158 58,209
23195351 19910083 19,253,688 7,376,924 4,631,170
491,102 B58.580 1,005,811 1,080,959 1,188,075
924 308 2,715,959 B.885 632 16, 186,540 15,155,169
1715425 4,030,572 1,374 3,266 2,797
3,130,825 &,803 120 7,892 BiT 17,250,765 16,324 041
1,681,517 1,417,328 2 287,037 2 (36,284 1,410,261
1,445 408 5,385 752 5605, 780 15,214 471 14,913,780
24, 644 750 25,295,885 24 850 465 21,501,365 149,744 250
52 282 BE.917 =173 04,193 28,744

2 > = 2 543,185 2,126,937
19,791,000 12,900,201 19,252 064 T.314,765 4,774,261
- - 3211046 10352292  10.352.292

50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
4,751,458 5248 7&7 2,286 677 2,236 980 2,401,718
24,644 759 25,295,885 24 859,466 22,591,395 19,744 950
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